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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

1.Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2.Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

3. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under including the accounting and auditing standards and the
matters which are required to be included in the audit report.




We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

4. Opinion;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2017;

(b) In the case of the statement of Profit and loss, of the loss for the
year ended on that date; and

(c) In the Case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date.

5. Emphasis on Matter

The Company was formed on 31st May 2010 as Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) for executing the project for Rehabilitation and Upgrading of
existing intermediate lane roads to 2 lane from Forbesganj -~ Jogbani on




NH-57A in the state of Bihar under NHDP Phase — III on DBFOT Annuity
basis having a Concession period of 15 years including construction period
of 2 years from the appointed date stated in clause 3.1 of Article-3, Part II
of the Concession Agreement. As stated in Note no 17 of the Financial
Statements, despite termination of the concession agreement with NHAI,
the accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern
basis, owing to the fact that the Company has lodged claim on NHAI,
which is sub-judice at present. Since the Company was formed as Special
Purpose Vehicle for execution of the aforesaid project, on termination of
the concession agreement with NHAI, there is no other contractual work
orders in hand of the Company. Hence, existence of going concern concept
in the near future depends entirely on realisability of the claim lodged by
the Company based on positive reward of arbitration, which is in progress,

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”), as amended, issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
Annexure “A” , a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

il.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have
been so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of financial statements;

d. In our opinion, aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, as
applicable;

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors
as on 31st March 2017, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March
2017, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act; and




f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”,

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to
other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
as at 31st March, 2017. - Refer Note 18 to the Financial
Statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor and Education Protection Fund
during the year ended March 31, 2017.

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosure in Note-19
in respect of holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank
Notes during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th
December, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying on
the management representation we report that the
disclosures are in accordance with the books of account
maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the
Management.

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 309005E

Partner
Membership No: 017361
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 19" day of May 2017



Annexure to the Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 6 of our Independent Auditors’” Report of
even date to the members of JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED on
the financial statements for the period ended 31% March 2017

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets on the basis of information available.

b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by
the management at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the company.

. The said company does not hold any inventory as on the year end

date, hence the said clause is not applicable.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms or other parties covered by section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Thus paragraph (a), (b), and (c) of 3(iii) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to
the company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, the

company has not provided any loans, investments and guarantees,
under provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

Therefore, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015




vi.

vii.

with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of any of the
activities of the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Works Contract Tax, Employees’ State
Insurance and other material statutory dues have been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no undisputed amounts payable as at 31 March, 2017 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no disputed Statutory Dues for the year under audit.

viil.According to the records of the company examined and the

Xi.

information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
availed any loan from any financial institution or bank. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

. Since this is a private company, no money can be raised by way of

public issue. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the company or on the company by its officers has been noticed
or reported during the course of audit.

Since this is a private limited company, section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of managerial remuneration does
not apply. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.




xii. In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the accounting standards.

xiv.According to information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

xv. According to information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under
section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 309005E

(S. Chiatterjee)

Partner

Membership No: 017361
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 19" day of May 2017



“Annexure B” referred to Para 6.2 (f) of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on “the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those




Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement and adeqguate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts, the disclosures in the financial statements and
adequacy of the internal financial control system over financial
reporting and there operating effectiveness. Our audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments we consider
internal financial control relevant to the company’s preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedure that are appropriate in the circumstances. Qur audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
company’s directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principies.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For S. Jaykishan

Chartered Accountants

'S } 4

FRN: 309005E

Partner
Membership No: 017361
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 19" day of May 2017



Jogbani Highway Private Limited

Corporate Identification Number - U45400WB2010PTC150039

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2017

{Amount in Rs.)

. Notes As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2017 | 31st March 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2 7,17,00,000 7,17,00,000
Reserves and surplus 3 (3,70,592) (3,70,592)
Current liabilities

Other current liabilities 4 34,000 45,283
Total ~7,13,63,408 7,13,74,691
ASSETS

Non - current assets

Fixed assets

- Tangible assets 5 23,58,795 23,58,795
- Intangible assets under development 6 2,75,35,674 2,42,61,698
Current assets

Trade receivable 7 2,74,468 2,74,468
Cash and bank balances 8 3,146 15,785
Short - term [oans and advances 9 4,11,91,325 4,44,63,945
Total 7,13,63,408 7,13,74,691
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants

ion number: 3 005E
7N ,‘i’lﬁ’f\\

Place: Kolkata
Date: 19th May 2017

For and

behalf of the Board of Directors

o M
Dirpet®or

DIN - 00001345

A %

A.K.Dokania

Director
DIN - 00029002




Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Corporate Identification Number - U45400WB2010PTC150039

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2017

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars For the year ended
Notes | 3ist March 2017 (31st March 2016

INCOME

Revenue from operations

- Contract revenue - -
Total revenue (1) - -
EXPENSES

- Payment to sub - contractors - -
- Preliminary expenses written off - -
Total Expenses (II) - -
Earnings before finance costs, tax expenses, depreciation - -
and amortization expenses (EBITDA) (I) — (II)

Depreciation and amortization expenses - -
Finance costs - -
Loss before taxes (III) - -
Tax expenses

- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses (IV) - -
Loss for the year [(III) ~ (IV)] - -
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs. 10/-
each)

(1) Basic (Rs.) . )
(2) Diluted (Rs.) - -
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants
Firmregistragion number: 309005E

{S. Cha/ﬁ riee
Partner
Membership no.: 017361

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15th May 2017

For and gn|behalf of the Board of Directors

4

A.K.Dokznia
Director
DIN - 00029002




JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Identification Number - }45400WB2010PTC150039
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2017
{(Amount in Rs.)

Pariculars Year ended 31.03.2017 | Year ended 31.03.2016

A. h Flow from rating Activiti
Net Profit before tax - -
Add: Preliminary Expenses written off - -

Operating Profit before working capital charges

Increase / (Decrease) in Other current Liabilities (11,283) 20,685

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivable -

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances 32,72,620 36,86,000

Cash Generated from operations 32,61,337 37,086,685
Direct Taxes paid -

Met Cash from Operating Activities (A} 32,61,337 37,06,685
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets & Capital WIP (32,73,976) (37,19,985)

Net Cash u in Investing Activiti (B) (32,73,976) {37,19,985)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Share Application Money Received -
Issue of redeemable Preference shares -

Net Cash from Financing Activities <) - -

Nat Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivnlents (A+B+C) (12,639 (13,300)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,785 29,085
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 3,146 15,785

Note :

i} The above Cash Flow has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as set out in Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash Flow
Statement issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

As per our report of even date attached
As per our report of even date

For S. Jaykishan
Chartered Accountants Forrand onibehalf of the Board of Directors

Fir egiy n number: 309005E /é
/4/ '

NKIsy,
ST &,

(5. Chgutérice) A.K.Dokania
Partner Director
Membership no.: 017361 DIN = 00001345 DIN - 00029002

Place: Kotkata
Date: 19th May 2017



NOTE-1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of preparation of financial statements :

(a) The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual
basis and on principles of going concern. The accounting policies are consistently
applied by the Company.

(b} The financial statements are prepared to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(¢) The preparation of the financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in
the period in which the results are known / materialized.

2. Fixed Assets :

Tangible

(a) Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use.

(b) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line basis method at the rates and
in the manner specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, However, where the
rate of depreciation provided in the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 does not
depreciate the asset fully over the period of concession or estimated useful life of such
assets, such tangible assets are depreciated over the period of rights given under the
concession agreement or estimated useful life as the case may be.

(c)} The carrying amounts of assets/cash generating assets are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset / cash
generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's net selling price and value in use, which is determined by the present
value of the estimated future cash flows.

Intangible Assets & Amortization
Intangible assets are recognized as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS)

26 “Intangible Assets” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Annuity entitlements are obtained in consideration for construction, operation and
maintenance services in relation to design, build, finance, operate and transfer on Annuity
basis. Intangible Assets under development comprises of cost of construction and pre-
operative expenses incurred up to the date of commencement of commercial operations.




Such pre-operative expenses are treated as Intangible Asset and is amortized over the
period of right given under the Concession agreement as they represent right to receive
annuity revenue during the concession period.

Impairment
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any

indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's net selling price and value in use, which is
determined by the discount present value of the estimated future cash flows. After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of assets.

3. Investments :
Investments classified as long-term are stated at cost. Provision is made to recognize any
diminution other than temporary in the value of such investments. Current investments are
carried at lower of cost and fair value.

4, Lease:
Assets acquired on lease where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease.

5. Retirement & Employee Benefits ;

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund being a defined contribution scheme are
charged to Profit & Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the fund are due.
There are no obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

Gratuity (unfunded) being a defined benefit obligation and long term compensated
absences (unfunded) are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of the
each financial year using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gain & losses are recognized immediately in the statement of Profit & Loss
account as income or expenses.

6. Borrowing Costs :

(a) Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets are
capitalized for the period until the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use.

(b) Other Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are
incurred,

7. Income Taxes :

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

(a) Provision for current tax is made based on taxable income for the current accounting
year and in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.




(b) Deferred Tax arising on account of "timing differences” and which are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods is recognized, using the tax rates and tax
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted. Deferred tax asset is recognized only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty with respect to reversal of the same in future
years as a matter of prudence.

8. Earnings per Share :

9.

10.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Foreign currency translations :

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items which are
carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement/conversion of monetary items are
recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Forward Exchange Contracts

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is
amortized as expenses or income over the life of the respective contracts. Exchange
differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year
in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of
forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for the year.

Miscellaneous Expenditure :
Preliminary expenses are amortized over a period of 5 years from the year of

commencement ufs 35D of the Income-tax Act, 1961.




11.Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

a) Provisions

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions made in terms of Accounting Standard 29 are not discounted to its present value
and are determined based on management estimates required to settle the obligation at
the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and appropriately
adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. Contingent Assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are not provided
for and are disclosed by way of notes.

Provisicn for product related warranties cost is based on the claims received up to the year
end as well as the management estimates of further liability to be incurred in this regard
during the warranty period.

b) Contingent Liabilities are not provided for in the accounts and are shown separately in
the Notes on Account.

c) Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

12,Prior Period Items :
Significant items of Income & Expenditure which relate to prior accounting periods, other

than those occasioned by events occurring during or after the close of the year and which
are treated as relatable to the current year, are accounted for in the Profit and Loss
Account under the head “Prior Period Items”




Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

2. Share Capital

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2017 31st March 2016

(a) Authorized shares

5,000,000 (31st March 2017 : 5,000,000} Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 5,00,00,600 5,00,00,000
910,000 (3ist March 2017 : 910,000) 12% Non Cumulative Redeemable 9,10,00,000 9,10,00,000
Preference Shares of Rs, 100/- each
14,10,00,000 14,10,00,000
{b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
4,560,000 (31st March 2017 : 4,500,000) Equity shares of Rs, 10/- each 4,50,00,000 4,50,00,000
267,000 (31st March 2017 : 267,000) 12% Non Cumulative Redeemable 2,67,00,000 2,67,00,000
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 7,17,00,000 7,17,00,000

{c) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

i. Equity Shares

Particulars As at 31st March 2017' As at 31st March 2016_

No. of Shares| Amount in Rs. No. of Shares Amount in Rs,
At the beginning of the year 45,00,000 4,50,00,000 45,00,000 4,50,00,000
Issued Durirng the Year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the Year 45,00,000 | 4,50,00,000 45,00,600 4,50,00,000
ii. 12% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

- As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Particulars - -

No. of Shares| Amount in Rs, No. of Shares Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the year 2,67,000 2,67,00,000 2,67,000 2,67,00,000
Issued During the Year - - - .
Qutstanding at the end of the Year 2,67,000 | 2,67,00,000 2,67,000 2,67,00,000

(d} Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

i. Equity Shares

(ay Tha company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share, The company wili declare and pay dividends In Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the sharehclders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. ’

{b) The amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs. Nil {31st March 2016 : Rs. Nil)

(¢) In the event of liquidation of the Cornpany, the holders of equity shares wiil be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii. 129% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(a) The Redeemable Preference Shares rank in regards to return of capital and dividend in priority to the equity shares.

(b) The Redeemable Preference Shareholders do not have any right to vote at any meeting except in case of reducticn of share capital, winding up
matters, preposal that affect the right of redeemable preference shareholders, in such cases each preference shareholders shall have cne vote for
each redeemable preference shares, the holder may demand a poll at the general meeting where such helder Is entitled to vote.

(c} The Company can {ssue subsequent preference shares only after getting permission for not less than three - forth existing shareholders and existing
shares shall have pricrity over subsequent issue of preferance shares,

(d) The Redeemable Preference Shares may be redeemed at any time after the expiry of 13 years from the date of Issue / allotment or earlier subject to
approval / consent of Board, preference shareholders and lenders.

(e) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

i. Equity Shares
Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
No. off Percentage No. of| Percentage holding
Shares held holding Shares held
GPT Infraprojacts Limited 33,00,000 73.33% 33,00,000 73.33%
RDS Projects Limited 12,00,000 26.67% 12,00,000 26.67%




Jogbani Highway Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

ii. 12% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Name of the shareholder

As at 31st March 2017

As at 31st March 2016

No, off Percentage No. of| Percentage holding
Shares held helding Shares held
GPT Infraprojects Limited 2,67,000 100.00% 2,67,000 100.00%
{f} Details of shares hold by the Company’s holding Caempany GPT Infraprojects Limited is
Class of Shares
As at 31st As at 31st March
March 2017 2016
No, of No. of

Shares held Shares held
Equity Shares 33,00,000 33,00,000
12% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 2,67,000 2,67,000

{g) As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial,

3. Reserves and surplus

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2017

As at
31st March 2016

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements (3,70,592) {3,70,592)
Add: Loss for the year - -
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss {3,70,592) (3,70,592)
[Total Reserves and surplus (3,70,592) (3,70,592)
4, Other Current Liabilities
{Amount in Rs.}
Particulars Asat As at
31st March 2017 31st March 2016
Other payables
- Expenses payable {cther than trade payabie) 34,060 45,283
34,0060 45,283




Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

5. Tangible Asset
{Amount in Rs.)

Land *

Gross Block :
As at 1st April 2015 23,58,795
Additions -
Deduction / Disposals
As at 31st March 20186 ) 23,58,795
Additions -
Deduction / Disposals -
As at 31st March 2017 23,58,795

Depreciation/Amortisation;
As at 1st Aprii 2015 -
Charge for the year -
Deduction / Disposals -
As at 31st March 2016 -
Charge for the year -
Deduction / Disposals .
As at 31st March 2017 -
Net Block
As at 31st March 2016 23,58,795
As at 31st March 2017 23,58,795

+ 0On cancellation of Loan of Rs 70.00 crore sanctioned to the company by State Bank of India, Land which was kept as security with SBI CAP, has been
released .

6. Intangible assets under development

up to year ended

Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Payment to audior

- As audit fees 1,18,388 1,01,138
- For other services 13,892 13,892
Bank charges 56,73,309 55,57,58%
Salary, wages and bonus 2,70,509 2,70,509
Filling fees 484,822 4,75,822
General expenses 49,278 49,278
Insurance premium 22,56,035 22,56,035
Printing and stationery 23,070 23,070
Professional and legal fees 1,86,43,695 1,55,03,945
Travelling expenses 10,420 10,420
Interest on Income Tax Refund (450) -
Liability No Longer Required Written back (7,292) -
Rounding Off (2} -

2,75,35,674 2,42,61,698




Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

7. Trade receivables

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2017 31st March 2016
Current Current
Unsecured
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six menths from the date
they became due for payment
- Consldered Good 2,74,468 2,74,468
- Considered Doubtful - -
2,74,468 2,74,468
{ess: Provision for Doubtful receivables - -
2,74,468 2,74,468
Others
- Considered Good - -
2,74,468 2,74,468
8. Cash and Bank Balances
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Asat As at
3ist March 2017 31st March 2016
Current Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 1,795 15,034
Cash on hand 1,351 751
3,146 15,785
9. Loans and advances (unsecured}
{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2017 31st March 2016
Current Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
{Considered Good)
- Sundry advances 1,32 951 1,32,951
(A) 1,32,051 1,32,951
Loan and advances to related parties
{Considered Good} * 4,10,41,537 4,43,06,037
Other Loans and advances
- TDS Receivable for the Year
~FY. 201112 - 8,120
-F.Y. 2012 - 13 16,837 16,837
(B) 4,10,58,374 4,43,30,994
Total {A+B) 4,11,91 325 4,44,63,945




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st
MARCH, 2017

NOTE-10 CORPORATE INFORMATION:
The Company was formed on 31st May 2010 as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) having its
main object to execute the project for Rehabilitation and Upgrading of existing intermediate
lane roads to 2 lane with paved shoulders of Forbesganj — Jogbani (km 0.000 to km 9.258) on
NH-57A in the state of Bihar under NHDP Phase — III on DBFOT Annuity basis having a
Concession period of 15 years including construction period of 2 years from the appointed
date stated in clause 3.1 of Article-3, Part II of the Concession Agreement. At the end of the
concession period the entire facility will be transferred to National Highway Authority of India.

NOTE — 11 Contingent Liabilities Not Provided For:

FY2016—17 FY 2015 -16

Particulars Rs. Rs.

(a) Bank Guarantee issued by a Banker of 36,800,000 36,800,000
holding Company on behalf of the
company for performance of the Contract

(b) Other Commitments Nil Nil

NOTE — 12 Amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which
are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31% March 2017. This information as required to
be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006, has been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company. In view of this, the liability of the interest and disclosure are not required to be
given in the financial statements. :

NOTE — 13 Segment Reporting :

a. Business Segment :
The business segments have been identified on the basis of the Activities undertaken by
the company. Accordingly, the Company has identified Civil and core Infrastructure as
single business activity. And hence separate information about business segment is not
applicable,

b. Geographical segment ;
The Company operates in India only and hence separate information about geographical
segment is not applicable.




NOTE -14 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES :

In compliance with Accounting Standard — 18, the disclosures regarding related parties are

as follows:
a. Name of Related parties:
a) | Key Management Personnel (KMP) :| Mr. Vaibhav Tantia, Director
:| Mr. A. K. Dokania, Director
b}  Holding Company i GPT Infraprojects Limited
b. Details of transactions and Balances outstanding :
Key Holding Company
Nature of Transactions Management (Rs.) Total
Personnel (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Payment to sub-contractor
(isdagens e 5 Zas | Gm
mobilization advance) e T
Balance outstanding as at
the year end — Debit
. . - 4,10,41,537 4,10,41,537
GPT Infraprojects Limited ) (4.43.06.037) (4.43.06,037)

Figure in Bracket represents Previous Year Figure.

NOTE — 15 EARNING PER SHARES :

The breakup of Earnings per Share (EPS) in terms of Accounting Standard 20 is as follows:

Particulars 2016 —17 | 2015-16
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Net Profit / (Loss) as per Profit & Loss Statement Nil Nil

Weighted average number of equity shares in 45,00,000 45,00,000

calculating basic EPS (Nos.)

Weighted average number of equity shares in 45,00,000 45,00,000

calculating dilutive EPS (Nos.)

Basic EPS Nil Nil

Diluted EPS Nil Nil

NOTE - 16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS :

Owing to termination of “"Concession Agreement” executed with National Highway Authority of
India , the company has no employee during the year and as such, Accounting Standard 15

(Revised) — Employee Benefits not applicable to the company.




NOTE ~ 17 TERMINATION OF CONCESSION AGREEMENT :

The “Concession Agreement” executed with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) for a
BOT project has already been terminated mainly due to required land not being made
available by the NHAI in terms of clause 4.1.2 of the “Concession Agreement” for up gradation
of existing intermediate lane roads to 2 lane from Forbesganj — Jogbani on NH-57A in the
state of Bihar under NHDP Phase — III. Consequently The Company has terminated EPC
contract with its Holding Company (EPC Contractor Company) entered for execution of the
said ccontract. Despite termination of the concession agreement with NHAI, the accounts of
the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis, since the Company has initiated
arbitration proceedings against NHAI and has lodged a claim of Rs.43.66 crores, which
includes claim of Rs. 32.00 crores of EPC contractors. The appropriateness of the going
concern basis is, inter alia, dependent on the positive outcome of arbitration under
adjudication, availability of adequate finance and profitability from any other contract, if the
Company gets in due course of time.

In the light of the above, deferred tax asset has not been recognized as a matter of prudence
as there does exist any virtual certainty of realization.

NOTE — 18 OTHERS :

(a) Conseguent to non-commencement of commercial operation of the company and on
complete amortization of its incorporation expenses /[ preliminary expenses, no
transaction has been routed through Profit & Loss Account of this and previous year.
Cost of construction and pre-operative expenses incurred during the year under review
has been debited to Intangible Assets under development.

Also, the amount of Rs 2,74,468/~ due from NHAI is been carried forward from earlier
years. Since the company is hopeful of positive outcome of the arbitration case pending
with NHAI, the company has not made provision for doubtful debt against the long
outstanding dues from NHAI.

(b)

NOTE ~ 19 OTHERS :

In terms of notification no G.5.R.308 (E) dated 30" March 2017 of Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, necessary disclosures on details of Specified Bank Notes and
other denomination notes held and transacted during the period from 8" November,
2016 to 30" December 2016 are provided as under :-

Particulars Specified Other Total
Bank Notes | Denomination
Notes

(a (b) (©) (D) = (b+c)
Closing Cash in Hand as on - 1,351/- 1,351/-
08.11.2016
Add. Permitted Receipts - - -
Less. Permitted Payments - - -
Less. Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing Cash in Hand as on - 1,351/~ 1,351/~
30.12.2016

Kx\‘" K %
~ -11’ \‘

A




NOTE — 20 OTHERS :

Previous year’s figures including those given in brackets have been regrouped / re-
arranged wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date

For S. JAYKISHAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN.309005E

%

(S. Chatterjee)
Partner
Membership No.- 017361

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

4

A. K. Dokania
Director
DIN — Q0001345 DIN - 00029002

Place : Kolkata
Date : 19" May 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Superfine Vanijya Private
Limited (“the Company”)}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statemenis that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies
and making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over




financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s management and the Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March 2017;

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, Profit for the year ended on that
date;
And

(c) In the Case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016,("the order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in "Annexure B”.




(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Ruie 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i»  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position, as per their representation.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as such the question of commenting any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Iv. The Company had provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements
as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period
from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 and these are in accordance
with the books of accounts maintained by the company.

For Konar Mustaphi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Nc[\ &

(C.A. S.K. MUSTAPHI
Partner
Membership No.051842

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24™ April 2017



“ANNEXURE A" TO AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report or other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report at even date to the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2017:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Fixed Assets of the Company have been physically verified
by the management in accordance with a regular programme of verification, which
in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancy noticed on such verification between book records and the physical
records were noticed on such verification.

(¢} The Company do not possess immovable property as such this clause is not
applicable,

{ii) There was neither any inventory at the beginning of the year nor at the end of the
year, accordingly provisions of this clause is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, clauses (iii)
(a), (b) and (c) of the aforesaid Order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v) As the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, provisions of
clause (v) of the aforesaid order is not applicable.

{vi) As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of Cost
Records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax/Value Added
tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income tax, Wealth tax, Sales tax,
Customs duty, Service tax, Excise duty and Cess were outstanding, as at 31%
March, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
records of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.




(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

{(xii)

(x1ii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the records of the Company, examined by us and as per the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not availed any loan
from the financial institutions or banks and has not issued any debenture.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the
company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments).

During the course of our examination of the books of accounts carried out in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Practices, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the neither Company nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

The company is a private company and as such the provisions of clause 3(xi) of
the order is not applicable.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore clause 3(xii) of the aforesaid order
is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not entered into any non- cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For Konar Mustaphi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No

(C.A. S.K. MUSTARH
Partner

Membership No.051842

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24" April 2017



“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Superfine
Vanijya Private Limited (“the Company”) as at 31st March, 2017 in conjunction with our
audit of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made conly in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrcls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31%° March 2017, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Konar Mustaphi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(C.A. S.K. MUSTAPRYYY
Partner
Membership No.051842

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24" April 2017



Superfine Vanijya Private Limited
Company Identification No - U25209WB2006PTC108994

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

(Amount in Rs.)

Notes As at As at
Particulars 31st March | 31st March 2016
i 2017
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 48,589,200 48,59,200
Reserves and surplus 4 1,43,55,720 1,43,37,171
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 5 50,00,000 -
Trade payables 6 90,480 1,22,909
Other current liabilities 7 10,13,525 10,02,391
Provisions 8 28,406 -
Total 2,53,47,331 2,03,21,671
ASSETS
Non - current assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 9 1,03,62,477 1,11,85,810
Deferred tax assets i0 - -
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 11 2,23,328 2,62,952
Short - term loans and advances 12 1,23,81,936 76,56,176
Other current assets 13 23,79,590 12,16,733
Total 2,53,47,331 2,03,21,671
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Konar Mustaphi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

C.A. 5.K.MUSTAPHI

Partner
Membership No.: 051842

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24th April 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N

S.L.Choraria

Director

DIN - 00031840

MOtrell, (o~

M.K.Lath
Director
DIN - 03261005



Superfine Vanijya Private Limited
Company Identification No - U25209WB2006PTC108994

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2017

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2016 -17 2015 - 16
Notes

INCOME

Other income 14 13,88,363 1,20,24,750

Total revenue (I) 13,88,363 1,20,24,750

EXPENSES

Cost of raw materials consumed 15 - -

Change in inventories of finished goods 16 - -

Other expenses 17 8,20,557 64,18,535

Total Expenses (II) 8,20,557 64,18,535

Earnings before finance costs, tax expenses, depreciation 5,67,806 56,06,215

and amortization expenses (EBITDA) (I) — (II)

Depreciation and amortization expenses 9 34,647 2,23,808

Finance costs 18 3,84,084 16,13,238

Profit/(Loss} before taxes (III) 1,49,075 37,69,169

Tax expenses

- Current tax 28,406 1,09,245

- Income Tax for eatlier years (net) 1,30,526 -

- MAT Credit (28,406) {1,09,245)

- Deferred tax expense - 23,80,921

Total tax expenses (IV) 1,30,526 23,80,921

Profit/(Loss) for the year [{III)— (IV)] 18,549 13,88,248

Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs. 10/

each)

(1) Basic (Rs.} 0.04 2.86

(2) Diluted (Rs.) 0.04 2.86

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Konar Mustaphi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

C.A. 5.K.MUSTAPHI

Partner
Membership No.: 05184

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24th April 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\/ K£ * & A — Molre gl | gii-
S.L.Choraria M.K.Lath
Director Director

DIN - 00031840 DIN - 03261005



Superfine Vanijya Private Limited
Company Identification No - U25209WB2006PTC108994

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2017

(Amount in Rs.)

Pariculars 2016 - 17 2015-16
from rati iviti

Net Profit before tax 1,49,075 37,69,169
Adjustment for : '
Depreciation 34,647 2,23,808
Interest Income {12,52,064) (12,16,733)
Liabilities no longer required written back (48,980) (2,82,962)
Profit on sale of fixed assets - {94,48,865)
Loss cn sale of fixed assets 7,88,687 -
Interest Expenses 3,84,084 (1,33,626} 16,13,238 (91,11,54)
Qperating Profit before working capital charges 15,449 (53,42,345)
(Increase) f Decrease in Loans & Advances 10,376 53,808
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories - 61,68,954
Increase f {Decrease) in Trade Payables 16,550 (1,22,855}
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities {15,113) {8,72,162)
Cash Generated from operations 27,262 {2,14,600)
Direct Taxes received / {paid) 2,21,744 (3,25,000)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 2,49,006 {5,39,600)
B w from Investi jviti
Short Term Loan Given (50,60,0003% 31,61,142
Interest received 1,29,207 1,82,56,858
Purchase of fixed assets - (7,00,800)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 3,25,00,000
Increase in Investment in Bank Fixed Deposits - 7,641
N used in Investing Activiti (B) T (49,30,793)| "~ 5,32,24,841 |
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Short Term Borrowings received / refunded (net} 50,00,000 (3,16,68,367}
Interest Paid (3,57,837) (2,10,58,173)
Net Cash from Financing Activities © T 46,42,163 | " (5,27,26,540)|
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents (A+B+C) (39,624) (41,299)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 2,62,952 3,04,251
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 2,23,328 2,62,952
Notes:
Cash & Cash Equivalents *;
Cash on hand 2,10,452 2,62,952
Balznece with Scheduled Banks:
In Current Account 12,876 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the Close of the year 2,23,328 2,682,952
*Excluding restricted Cash in form of Fixed Deposits Pledged as security / margin with banks,
As per our report of even date
For KONAR MUSTAPH! & ASSOCIATES
Firmn Registration No 314125 For and on behaif of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

J‘- L ) M’“ / L, e -

C.A. S.K.MUSTAPHI S.L.Choraria M.K.Lath
Partner Director Director

Membership No.: 051842

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24th April 2017

DIN - 060031840

DIN - 03261005



Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

®

(i)

(iii)

Corporate information

The Company was originally incorporated on 18" April, 2006 in the name of Superfine Vanijya
Private Limited under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is domiciled in India, The
Company’s name was changed to GPT Marecom Private Limited. Fresh certificate of incorporation
consequent upon change of name was issued by Registrar of Companies on 12" October, 2011.
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 31* January 2015 proposed to change the name of
Company to its original name i.e, Superfine Vanijya Private Limited. Registrar of Companies, Kolkata
has issued a fresh certificate of Incorporation on 4™ February 2015 certifying change of name of the
Company to Superfine Vanijya Private Limited. The registered office of the company is situated at JC
— 25, sector — III, Salt Lake, Kolkata — 700 098, West Bengal.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of Accounts

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements
to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies
{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are
consistent with those used in the previous year, except as stated otherwise.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 11T to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company ascertains its operating cycle for the purpose
of current or non- current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure .of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the results of operations during the reporting pericd. Although these estimates are
based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Tangible fixed Assets

a) Tangible fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of tangible fixed
assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included
to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

by Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of tangible fixed assets
and whose use as per technical assessment is expected to be irregular, are capitalized and
depreciated over the residual fife of the respective assets.




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

(iv) Depreciation / Amortization

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

a}  Depreciation on Tangible fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line method at the rates
specified in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

b} Depreciation on Tangible fixed Assets added/disposed off during the year is provided on pro -
rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.

c) In case of impairment, if any, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
assets over their remaining useful life.

Intangible Assets
a) Intangiblfe assets are recognized as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS) 26
“Intangible Assets” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs relating to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets are capitalized until the
time all substantial activities necessary to prepare the gualifying assets for their intended use are
complete. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time fo get ready for
its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there are
any indications of impairment based on external/internal factors. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount which represents the
greater of the net selling price and Value in use’ of the assefs. The estimated future cash flows
considered for determining the value in use, are discounted to their present value at the pre-tax
weighted average cost of capital.

In case of impairment, if any, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets
over their remaining useful life.

Foreign Currency Transactions

a) Initial Recognition: Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by
applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

b) Conversion: Foreign currency monetary items are reporied using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items which are carried in ferms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined.

c) Exchange Differences: Exchange differences arising on the settlement/conversion of
monetary items are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

(ix)

(69]

(xi)

{xii)

dy Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an
existing asset / liability - The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward
exchange contracts is amortized as expenses or income over the life of the respective
contracts. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss in the period in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation
or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for the period.

Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.
Current investments are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on individual investment
basis. Long term investments are valued at cost, unless there is an “cther than temporary” decfine
in value thereof, in which case, adequate provision/write-off is made in the accounts.

Inventories

a) Raw materials, packing materials and stores, spares & consumables are valued at lower of
cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a
“Weighted average basis” basis.

b) Work-in-progress and finished gocds are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost
includes direct materials, labour cost and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on
normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on
a weighted average basis.

c) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

a) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund being a defined contribution schemes are
charged to the statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the funds
are due. There are no obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds,

b} Gratuity (unfunded) being a defined benefit obligation and Leave encashment (unfunded) are
provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method, at the end of
each financial year.

c) Actuarial gains/losses are taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Taxation
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. Deferred taxes reflect the impact of current year timing
differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing
differences of earlier years.




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. If the company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and
tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty backed by convincing
evidence that such deferred tax assets can be realized against future taxable profits. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed at the end of each reporting pericd and
recognized to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

(xiii) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

a. Sale of Goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, Sales are net of taxes,
returns, claims, trade discounts, etc.

b. Income from Services: Revenues from operation and maintenance contracts are
recognized on rendering of services as per the terms of contract.

C. Interest: Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account
the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

(xiv) Provision

(xv)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle such obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management
estimates.

Provision for product related warranties cost is based on the claims received upto the year end as
well as the management estimates of further liability to be incurred in this regard during the
warranty period.

Earnings per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

{xvi) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resaurces will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent Hability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

{(xvii)Lease
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased item, are classifled as operating leases.

{xviii} Measurement of EBITDA
As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the
company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In its
measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs
and tax expense,




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

3. Share Capital

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016

{a} Authorized

500.000 (P.Y. 5.00.000) Eauity shares of Rs.10/- each 50,00,000 50,00,000
53,00,000 50,00,000

{b) Issued, subscribed and paid-up

485,920 (P.Y. 4,85,920) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 48,59,200 48,59,200

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 48,59,200 48,59,200

{c) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016
No. of Shares| Amountin Rs.| No. of Shares| Amount in Rs.
At the beginning of the vear 4,85,920 48,59,200 4,85,920 48,59,200
Issued During the Year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the Year 4,85,920 48,59,200 4,85,920 48,59,200

(d) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

i. The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Birectors is subject
to the aboroval of the shareholders in the ensuina Annual General Meeting,

ii. Inthe evert of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company.

{e) Details of Equity Shareholders holdina more than 5% in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016
No. of] Percentage No. of| Percentage
Sharesheld] holdina | Sharesheld!  holding |
GPT Infraproiects Limited 4,835,920 100% 4,85,920 100%

(f) Al the shares of the company are held by its holding Company {M/s. GPT Infraprojects Limited) and its neminee.

{g) As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both leaal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

4, Reserves and surplus

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016

Securities Premium Account

Balance as per the last financial statements 2,04,36,800 2,04,36,800
Closing Balance {(a) 2,04,36,800 2,04,36,800
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements {60,99,629) {74,87, 877
Less: Profit/(Less) for the year 18,549 13,88,248
Closing Balance (b} {60,81,080) (60,99,629)

Total Reserves and surplus (a+h) 1,43,55,720 14337171




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

5, Short Term Borrowings

{Amount in Rs,)

Particulars As at 31st Asat 31st
March 2017 March 2016
Unsecured Loans
From holding company 50,00,000 -
50,00,000 -
Note :
Unsecured Loan from holdina company carries interest @ 13.50 % p.a. and repaid during the vear,
6. Trade Payables
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016
Current Current
Trade Pavables * ( including due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil)} 90,480 1,22,909
90,480 1,22,909

* As per information available with the company, there are no suppliers covered under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006. As a result, no interest provision/payment have been made by the company to such creditors, if any, and no disclosure

thereof is made in this accounts.

7. Other Current Liabilities

(Amountin Rs.}

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 9,79,458 9,53,251
Other pavables
- Statutery Dues 34,027 -
- Temporary overdraft in Bank account - 49,140
10,13,525 10,02,391
8. Provisions
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016
Provision for Income Tax [Net of Advance Income Tax Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs. Nif}] 28,406 -
28,406 -
10. Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) {Net) *
Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016
Deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable against taxable income In future years 6,15,342 8,90,971
Less :
Deferred tax liability
Timing difference on depreciable assets 6,15,342 8,950,971

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) {net} (a-b)

* The Company Is carring deferred tax assets of Rs. 49,02,316/- as on 31.03.2017 on account of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
business losses. The Company ia also carrying deferred tax liablity of Rs. 6,15,342/- as on 31.03.2017. The Company has recognised
deferred tax assets to the extend of deferred tax liability of Rs. 6,15,342/- in these financials as a prudence.

11, Cash and Bank Balances

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31ist
March 2017 March 2016
Current Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 12,876 -
- Cash on hand 2,10,452 2,62,952
2,23,328 262,952
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Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

12. Loans and advances (unsecured, considered good)

{(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Non - current Current | Non - current Current
Loan to bedy corporate
- Others - 1,17,09,137 - 66,49,137
Security Money / Earnest Money Deposits
- Others - - - -
Other Loans and advances
- Balance with government authorities - 4,05941 - 4,16,317
- MAT Credit Entitiement - 1,37,651 - 1,09,245
- Advance income-tax [Net of provisions of Rs. 28,406/- - 1,29,207 - 4,81,477

(P.Y. Rs. 1,09,244/-)]
- 1,23,81,936 - 76,56,176

13, Other current assets {unsecured, considered good}

(Amount in Rs.}

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2017 March 2016
Interest accrued on loan aiven 23,79,590 12,16,733
23,79,590 12,16,733
14, Other Income
(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Interest income on
- Loan qiven 12,92,064 12,16,733
- Qthers 47,319 -
Profi{ on sale of fixed assets - 94,48,865
Liabilities no lonaer required written back 48,980 2,82,962
Sale of obsolete stock of materials - 10,76,190
13,88,363 1,20,24,750
15. Cost of raw material consumed
Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-1§
Inventory at the beginning of the year - 4544,112
Add: Purchases - -
- 45,494,112
Less, Written off during the year -

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of raw materials consumed

4544,112




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2017

16. Decrease/(Increase) in inventories of finished goods

(Amount in Rs.}

Particulars 2016 - 17 2015 - 16
Inventories at the beainning of the year:

Finished goods - 16.24,398
Less. Written off during the year - 16,24,398

Less.
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished gocds

17. Other Expenses

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2016 - 17 2015-16
Rates and taxes 300 300
Repairs and Maintenance
- Qthers - 1,99,949
Payment to Auditors:
As Auditor:
- Audit fee 11,550 11,450
- Certification fee - 6,955
Inventories written off - 61,68,954
Loss on discard of fixed assets 7,88,687 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 20,020 30,927
8,20,557 64,18,535
18 Finance Cost
(Amount in Rs.}
Particulars 2016 -17 2015 - 16
Interest expense 3,84,084 16,13,238
3,84,084 16,13,238




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

16. Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of;
(Amountin Rs.)

st st
Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2017 March 2016
a) Outstanding Bank Guarantee Nil Nil
b) Letter of Credit and Bank Guaraniee provided by the Nil Nil
holding Company on behalf of the Company
¢) Liability Under Capital Commitments {Less Advances) Nil Nil
d) Other Commitments Nil Nil

20, Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as on the Balance Sheet date are as under :

The Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure at the balance sheet date:

{Amountin Rs.)

Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31° March 2016
Sundry Creditors Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

21. Segment Reporting :
The Company operates in a single segment in the context of Accounting Standard 17 on Segment
Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Company primarily operates in
India which is considered as a single geographical segment. As such separate information about

business segment is not applicable.

22, Basis for calculation of Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share is as follows ;

(Amount in Rs, except per share data)

particulars Year ended Year ended
315 March 2017 | 31** March 2016
Weighted average number of equity shares in
ighted average number of equity shares i Nos. 485,920 485,920
calculating basic and Dilutive EPS
Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax Rs. 18,549/- 13,88,248/-
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share Rs. 0.04 2.86

23. Retirement and Employee Benefits
The Accounting Standard 15 — Employee Benefits though has become mandatory, the same is
however not applicable to the Company for current and previous financial year as the Company has
no such liability.




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

24. Related Party Disclosures
a) Names of the related parties:

Holding Company

GPT Infraprojects Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Shanti Lal Choraria
Mi. Mahesh Kumar Lath

b) Related Party Disclosures:

(Amount in Rs.)

Nature of Transactions

Key Management
Personnel and
their Relatives

Holding Company

Total

Loan Refunded

GPT Infraprojects Limited

) (4,16,68,367/-} | (4,16,68,367/-)
Loan Received
GPT Infraprojects Limited (:) a, 050?6%%%%3/; , 050%%%%%35
Interest Paid
GPT Infraprojects Limited (:) a 6::’;.2%23787) a 6?’11?’223:;{;
Balance Outstanding af the Year end — Credit
GPT Infraprojects Limited (:) (59?’573?'245235 ) (59?’57:-;9,53{ )

Sl, No. | Particulars 2016-17 | 2015-16

a. Value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis - -

b. Expenditure in foreign currency - -

c. Total value of all imported raw materials, spare parts and | Not Not
components consumed during the year and the value of all | Applicable | Applicable
indigenous raw materials, spare paris and components
similarly consumed and the percentage of each of the total
consumption

d. The amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies - -
on account of dividends

e. Earning in foreign exchange - -




Superfine Vanijya Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

26. In terms of potification no G.5.R.308 (E) dated 30" March 2017 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
necessary disclosures on details of Specified Bank Notes and other denomination notes held and
transacted during the period from 8" November, 2016 to 30" December 2016 are provided as

under ;-

Particulars Specified Bank Other Total

Notes Denomination
Notes
(2) (2)] (c} (d) = (b+c)

Closing Cash in Hand as on 08.11.2016 1,50,000/- 1,10,452/- 2,60,452/-
Add. Permitted Receipts - 1,00,000/- 1,00,000/-
Less. Permitted Payments - - -
Less. Amount deposited in Banks 1,50,000/- - 1,50,000/-
Closing Cash in Hand as on 30.12.2016 - 2,10,452/- 2,10,452/-

27. Details of Loans given, Investment made and Guarantee given covered under section 186(4) of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Name of the Company Nature of As at 31% As at 31%
Transaction March 2017 March 2016
GPT Sons Private Limited Loan Given 1,17,09,137/- 66,47,137/-

i. Loan given to the Company are for their general business purpose.
ii. Thereis no investment and Guarantees given during the current and previous financial year.

28. Previous year’s figures including those given in brackets have been regrouped / re-arranged
wherever considered necessary to confirm to current year’s classification.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Konar Mustaphi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

C.A. S.K.MUSTAPHI

Partner
Membership No : 051842

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24th April 2017

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

S Aot

S. L. Choraria

Director

DIN - 00031840

NMogp—tta Lo
M. K. Lath

Director

DIN — 03261005
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Directors’® report

The directors are pleased to present tacir report together with the audited financial statements of GPT
Investments Private Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Principal activity

The principal activities of the company are that of investments holding and of management and
markeling consultancy services.

Results and dividend

The results for the year are shown on page 7.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year under review (2016: Nil),
Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year giving a true
and fair view of the state of alTairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company. In
oreparing those financial statements, the dircctors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
g makc judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

@ state whether Internationat Financial Reporting Siandards have been [oilowed, subject to any

N fon L - 11 i - N ~ - T e LT e Y e |
fugierial depatiutes disviused and caplaed e Noancian statnicings, aind

= prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The Directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controi
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of chese financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

They are also responsible for the safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Dircctors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
have no reason o believe that the business will notbe a going concern on the year ahead.

By order of the Board

_{\L {) .

{

Divector Date: 14 ?‘71&{% 2043



GPT Envestments Private Limited

Secretary’s certificate
Jor the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement from secretary under Section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with section [66 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we certify that to the best of
our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies, all such returns as
are required of the Company under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001,

et

e
o

"{ i :
FRAN CAT oo

e e e et

For and on behalf of ROGERS CAPITAL CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED
Company Secretary

Date:... 465, .i“?&@@% LA

i
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Chartered Accouniants

Auditars' report to sharsholder of GPT Investments Private Limited
Opinion

We have audited the finaacial stataments of GPT lnvestments Private Limited {the “Company”) set out on pages 7030
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of eash flows for the year then ended, 2ad notes ta

the financial statements, including signifisant accounting palicies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and {air view of, the financial position of GPT Investments Private Limited
as at 31 March 2017, and of its financial performance and its eash flows for the yesr then ended in accerdance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs]. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Intarnational Ethics Standards Bearé fer Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountznts (IESBA Cedeland we have fulfiled our other ethical responsililities m
accerdance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audic evidence we have obtained is sufficieat and apprepsiate to

arovide a hasts for our apinion,
Lrirer INFOLMAation

The directers are respomsible for the other information. The other informatien comprises the Directors” Report and the
Company Sscretary’s Certificate as required by the Companies Act 2001, but daes rot include the financial statements our

auditor's report thereon,

Dur opinion on the financial statements does nat cover the ather information and we do not express any form of assurance

cenclusion thereen,

In connection with aur audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is ta read the other informatisn and, in doing sn,
cansider whether the other infarmation is materially inconsistent with the finaneial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, o otherwise appears to be matarialiy misstated. H, based on the work we have performed on the other infarmation
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatament of this nther
infarmation, we are reguized to report that fact. We have nathing to report in this ragard,

Respansibilities of the Birectors for the Financial Statements

The directors are respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards and the requiremsnts of the Gompanies Act 2001, and for such internal control
as the diractors determine is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financiel statements that are free from matereal

missiatement, whather die to fraud or error,

CaCas

INDEPENDENT MERBER

al



L.ancasters

Chartered Accountants

Auditers’ report to sharaholder of GPT Investments Private Limited {continued)
Respansibilities of the Directors far the Financial Statements (continured)

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability te continue s a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unfess
1he directars either intend to fiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have ne realistic alternative but to da so.

Auditor's Respensibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Thir hjectives are 1o cbiain reasonatils assurance sbout whether the finangial statements as 2 whele are free from material
misstatemant, whather due to fraud or errar, and 1o issue an aaditor's report that includes our apinion. Reasonabie assurance
is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
maiesial misstatement when it exists. Misstatemants can arise frem fraud or error 2nd are considered maierial if, individually
or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these finangial statemants.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professienal judgement and maintain prefessional scepticism
.- ihroughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error, design
' and perform audit precedures responsive 1o those risks, and obiain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nof detecting 2 material misstatement resulting {ram fraud is higher than for
ane restlting fram =rear as frand mav invnlue callision farmery intentinnal nmissions misrepeasentations pr the nverride

of internal control.

"o Dbtain an understanding of internal contzol relevant to the sudit in order to design audit procedures that are sppropriate
in the eircumstances, but not for she purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal

control.

» FEvaluate the spprapriateness ef accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of acceunting estimates and selated
disclosures made hy the directaors.

« Concluge on the appropriateness of the director's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based an the audit
evidesce chiained, whather a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
an the Company’s ahility to continue as a geing concern. Il we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
reuiired to draw atlention in our auditor's report do the relsted disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinian. Gur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report, Howevar, future events or conditions may cause the Jompany to cease o continue as a going

cOncernm.

o Fyaluate the overeli presentation, structurs snd content of the Financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the firancial siatements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation,

We cammugicate with the diractors regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant defieiencias in internal control that we identity during our audit.

2 ol an

INMZEPENDENT MEMBER

5 -
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Chartered Accountants

Auditors’ report to shareholder of GPT Investments Frivate Limited (continued)

dther matter

This report is made solely for the Cempany's membier, in actordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2007, Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Comipany's member those matters we are required ta state to themin
an auditor's report and for ro other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept er assume responsibility
to anyone ather than the Company and the Company's member, for our audit wark, far this repart, or for the opinions we have

farmed.
Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Reguirements

Mauritius Companies Ace 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as audilers and dealings in the ordinary
caurse of business,

We have obtained all the infarmation and explanations we have required.

in cur opinien, praper accounting racords have been kept by the Company s far as it appears fram owr axemination of those
records.

| - t‘ﬂygn, Ty ' )

Dy _;,{;;fﬁ;}; }‘gf/ 4

L b {d A '

?Lancastafs, I Pasram Bissessuy%ﬂﬂﬁ;ﬁ&&rfﬁﬂ UK
Chartered Accoumiants Licensed by FRE !

14, Lancaster Court
Lavoguer Street
Post Louis
Mauritius

Date: ]ﬂ ‘5 f(QCJJ ¥

T s

INDEPENDENT MEMBER



GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Sfor the year ended 31 March 2017

Note
Revenue I
Expenses
Profit from aperating activities
Finance income 7
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense B

Profit for the year
. Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 11 to 30 form part of these financial statements

2017 2016

USD USD
559,000 559,000
(268,302) (257,138)
290,698 501862
220,562 202,032
s11260 503,894
(18,430) (15,117)
TTaonga0 48T
s assam



GPT Investinents Private Limited

Statement of financial position

at 31 March 2017
Note 20317 2016
UshD Ush
Assels
Non-current assels
Avsilable-for-sate financial assets ) 909,234 005,234
Loan receivable 10 2,968,562 2,748,000

Total non-current assets 3,877,796 3,657,234

Current assets

Other receivables t 1,860,362 390438

Cash and cash equivilents i 47,539

Total enrrent assets 1,060,433 637,977

TOTAL ASSETS 4938228 4,295,211

Equity

Stated capital 12 2,125,000 2,125,000
2 480778 1 097 Q4R

Rptained fammaae

‘Total zquity

Liabilities

Cutrent liahilities

Other puyables 13 311,156 142,633

Tux puyable 8 1130 29.628

Total current lizhilitics 322,451 172,263

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,938,229 4295211
™My 201

These financial slalements have been approved by the Board on .00 8 L‘j ....... 7 ....... and

signed on its behalf by:

Directn

The notes on pages 11 1o 3¢ form part of these financial stalements



GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of ehanges in equity
Sor the year ended 31 March 2617

Stated Retained Total
capital earnings eguity
USh USh Usp
Balance at 01 Aprif 2015 2,125,000 1,509,171 3,634,171
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - 488,777 488,717
Other comprehensive income - - -
Balance at 31 March 2016 2,125,000 1,997,943 4,122,948
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - 492 830 492 830
Other comprehensive income -
Balance at 31 March 2017 2,125,600 2,490,798 4,613,778

The notes on pages § 1 to 30 form part of thess finarcial statoments



GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Cash Flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjusiment for:
[nterest income
Change in other receivables

Change in other payables

Cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities
Tax paid

Net cash {used in)/ from operating activities

Cash flows frem financing activities

Loan granied o related pasty

Net (decreaseY increase in cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages | | 1o 30 form part of these financial sfatements

iG

2017
Ush

511,260

(220,562)

290,698
(469,924)
168,515

(16,711)
(36,757

{47,468)

(47,468)

2016
USD

503,854

(202,032)

301,862
(313,105)
102,953

829

47,539



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2017

i

2.

Genceral information

The Company was incorporated as a private {imited Company on 27 March 2008 and was granied a
Category 1 Global Business Licence. The principal activitics of the Company are that of
investiments holding and of management and marketing consuitancy services.

Basis of preparation

(a)

(b

(c)

(d)

Statenent of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Interrational Financial
Reporting Standards (*IFRS™) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASEB).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where stated
otherwise.

Funcrtional currency and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar {USDY} which is the Company’s
functional currency and presentation currency.

Use of the estimutes and judgement

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabiiizies, income and cxpenscs. Actual resulis may differ from these

cstimates.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Assumption and sstimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and cstimation unceriainties (if any) that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2017 is included in the
relevant notes as follows:

¢ Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry
forward tax losses can be used;

v Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including the
recoverability of development costs;

= Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.



GPT Investments Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

¥

-

L)

Basis of preparation {continued)

td) Use of the estimates and judgement (continued)

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair valucs, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilitics.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair vaiue hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the vajuation techniques as follaws:

«  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

«  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either direcily (i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

»  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

{unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability (all into different fevels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
sume level of the Fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises translers between levels of the fair valuc hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after | April 2016, and have been applied in preparing these financial statements.

Amendntents to IAS | Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to JAS | give some guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality in
practice.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these amendments to TAS 1
will have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2017

-

2.

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

1.2 Summary of Standards and Interprefations not yet effective Tor 31 Mareh 2007

E Standard/Interpretation Date issued Effective date:
by IASB Periods beginning on or after
[AS 7 Dixclosure amendmenis January 2014 | January 2017
FRS 15 Revemie from contracts with | May2014 | 1lJanuary 2018
CHSTOmers
IFRS9 Financial Instruments o ) July 2014 {1 January 2018 S

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments o I4S 7}

The amendments provide for disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flow and non-cash changes. This includes providing a reconciliation between the opening and
CLUSEIY, UldIluSs 10 dDUILES alidlily FuLl l-malwmg avliy s,

The amendieuis apply for ainwal poniods boginning on of alte
application is permitted.

IFRS 13 Revenue from confracts with customers

This standard replaces [AS 11 Construction Coniracis, J1AS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes, \IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer
of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - Barter of Transuctivns Involving Advertising

Services
The standard contains a single mode! that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches

1o recognising revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a confract-based five-
step analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, with eary
adoption penmitted.




GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

o

3.

for the year ended 31 March 2017

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS8s)
(eontinued)

3.2 Summary of Standards and Interpretations not yet effective for 31 Mareh 2017
{continued)

IFRS 9 Finaacial Instraments

On 24 july 2014, the JASB issued the final 1IFRS 9 Financiel Istrumnents Standard, which replaces
carlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the JASB’s project to replace 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement.

This standard will have a significant impact on the Company, which will include changes in the
measurement bases of the Company’s financial assets 1o amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss. Even though these measurement
categories are similar to [AS 39, the criteria for classification inte these categories are significantly
different. In addition, the IFRS 9 impairment model has been changed from an “incurred loss™
model from 1AS 39 0 an “expected credit loss™ model, which is expected to inurease the provision
fur bud debts.

The standard is effective for annual pericds heginning on or aler | January 2018 with retrospective
appiication. early adoption is permitied.

Significant accounting policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presenied in

these financizal statiements
(uiy droratgn CLiEodLy HORMICTIONS

Transactions in forsign currencies are translated inte the respeetive tunctional currencies of the
company af the exchange rates al {he dates of the ransactions,

Monctary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-mongiary assets and liabilities that arc
measured at fabr value in a foreign currency are translated in the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary iems that are measurcd based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are not transiated.

However, foreign cuirency differences arising from the translation of the foilowing items are
recopaised in OCL

avaliablo-tor-sale equily investments (excepl on impairment, 1 which case foreign currency

differences that have been recognised in OCT are reclassilied to profit or loss):

e 2 [ancial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation 1o the
cnient ihat the hedge is effective; and

= qualifying cash flow hedges 10 the extent that the hedges are effective.



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2017

4,

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

()

()

(e}

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised as follows:
= Dividend income: when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

s Management service fee: as services arc performed and when it is probable that the
sconomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.

Finance income

Finance income includes interest income.

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis.
Taxation

Income lax expense comprises current and deferred fax. 1t is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income (OCE),

L urrent tax i$ the expecied lax payabie or recelvabie on the laxabie income or ioss [or e year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment 1o fax
payable or receivable in respect of prior years.

Current tax gesets and Habilities aie offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying ameunts of
assets and lisbilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

= temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a fransaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

»  temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable
future; and

= gxable temporary differences arfsing on the initial recognition of goodwill.
g

Delerred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable thal future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Deferred @x assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 1ax benefit wil be
renlised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
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Significant accounting policies {(continued)

(e} Taxation (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed al each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred lax is measured at the tax rafes that are expected lo be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflect the tax conseguences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Fingncial instruments

The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into other financial liabilities
carepory.

(1) Non-dertvative financial assets and jimancial labilinies — Kecognition and derecognilion

The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on (he date when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date.

‘The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a trungaclion in
which substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asscts are
transforred, or it neither tansfers nor retains substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset,  Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is created or reiained by the Company is recognised as a
separate asset or lability.

The Company derecognises & financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expired.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and seltle the Bability

stmultanecusly.
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Significant accounting policies {continued)

() Financial instruments (continued)

g

{17} Non-derivarive financial assets - Measurement

Loans and reccivables - These assets are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets - Available-for-sale investments whase fair value can be
measured reliably are valued at fair value and the resulting lemporary unrealised gainsflosses

are reported in equity. Available-for-sale invesiments whose fair value cannot be measured
reliably are carried at cost less impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents « Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term,
highty liquid investments that are readily convertible (o known amounts of cash and which are
subject ta an insignificant risk of change in value.

Crther receivables - Other receivables are stated at cost less impairment.

S Masdavinmtive fnaneisl iakilitioe Adoarsimmens

(rther non-derivartive financial iabilities are initiallv recognised at fair value less any directly
atiributable transaction costs. Subseguent $o initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Non-derivative financial Habilities comorise of other pavables.

Other payables - Other payaliles are stated at amortised cost.

Share capital - Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified in equity. Incremental costs direcily attributable to the issus of
ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from equity.

hupairiment
(i) Non-dernative financial assets
Financial asscis not classificd as fair value through profit or loss, including an interest in an

equity-accounted investee, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
chjective evidence of impairment.
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4. Significant accounting policies {eontinued)
(o) Impairment (continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial assels (continued)
Objective cvidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

»  default or delinquency by a debtor;

»  restructuring of an amount due to the Company on lerms that the Company would not
consider otherewise;

e indications that a debtor or issuer will eater bankrupley:

» adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or ESSUETS;

»  the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

+  observable daia indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the expected cash flows
from the Campany’s of financial asscts

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference betiveen an asset’s carrying amount and the
present value ol the estimated (uture cash Nows discounted ar the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there ars no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
ralevant amounts are written off, If the amount of impairment ioss subsequently decreases and
the dectease Gai be related Uh_]c(‘.li\"i!iy 13 4n  event OCUurming alter he II"IE]')E‘.‘IE'I'E]CI‘I'- WwWHS
recogniscd . then the previously recognised impairiment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

(ii} Non-financial assets

Al cach reporting date. the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its nen-financial assets w0
Ceterrire whether thers is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the
assel’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is reversed only 10 the exient tnat
the assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined, nel of depreciation or amortisation, if ne iimpairment loss had been recognised.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generales cash inflows frem continuing use thal are largely independent of the cash inflows of
piher assets or CGUs,

“The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs fo sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted w their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specitic to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised if
the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recegnised in profit or lass.

An impairment loss is reversed only 10 the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying wnount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment oss had heen recognised.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

thi Related penrtizs

(i)

i,

(ky

Related parties may be individuals or other entities where the individual or other entities has the
abilily, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence over the
Company in governing the financial and operating policies, or vice versa, or where the
Company are stbject 10 cammon control or common significant influence.

Provisions

A provision i recognised if, as a result of a past eveny, the Company have a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settie the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tay rate that
rellects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifie 1o the
liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised as fnance cost.

Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated Trom the coniinuing principal revenue producing
activitdes of the Company as well as other income and expenses related to operaling activiues.
Operating profit excludes net finance income, gain on disposal of plant and equipment and
INCome tax.

Fawr vaiue measurement principles
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a labitity setded, between
knowiedgeable, willing parties in an arms’ length transaction on the measurement date.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using guoted prices in
an active market for that instrument, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring transactions on an arms’
length basis.

If a market for {inancial instrument is not active, the Company establishes fair value using a
valuation technique. Valuation technigues include recent arms’ length transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current [air value of other
instruments that are substantiatly the same, discounted cash flow analyses and option pricing
models. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as litie
as possible on estimates specific to the Company, incorporates all faciors thal wmarkel
participents would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted cconomic
methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably
represent market expectations and measures the risk-retumn factors inherent in the financial
instrument.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Fair value measurement principles {continued)}

The Company calibrates valuation techniques and tests for validity using prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available

observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the
transaction price, i.e, the fair value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value
of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market
transactions in the same instrumeni (e, wilhout modification or repackaging) or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. When
transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial transaction price and any
difference between this price and the value initially obtained from u valuation model is
subsequently recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument
but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the

transaction is closed out.
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5. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

(b} Financial vish management

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include available-for-sale
financial assets, loan receivable, other receivables, cash and cash equivaleats and other payables.
The recogrition method adopted is disclosed in the individual policy statement associated with each
item. The maost important types of risk are market risk, credit risk and liquidity tisk.

The Company’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risks and thosc activities involve the
analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
The Company’s aims are therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Company’s risk management policles are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to menitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of
relizble and up-to-date information systems. The Company regularly reviews their risk management
policies and svstems to reflect changes in markets and emerging best practice.

Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Market risk
e Croditrigh

e Liguidity risk
Market risk

Muarket risk represents the poiential foss that can be causad by a change in the mathet value of
financial instruments, The Company’s exposure 1o marketl risk is determined by a number of
factors, including interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market volatility. The
Company conducts its invesument operations in & manner that secks to exploit the potential gains in
the market, while limiting its exposure io market declines.

= Currency risk

The Company invests in stocks denciminated in South African Rand (ZAR). Consequently, the
Company is exposed 1o the risk that the exchange rate of the USD relative 1o ZAR may change ina
manner, which has a material effect on the reported values of the Company’s financial assets which

are denominated in USD.

23
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5. Finanecial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(b} Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk feontinued)

w  Currency risk (continued)

Currency profile

Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets
2017 2017 2016
yYsb Usph Ush
Uusn 4,024,633 311,150 3,385,539
ZAR B09234 909,234
4,933,867 311,150 4,294,773

Sensitivity analysis — currency risk
2017
Currency Usp
ZAR 99,923

Financial
Habilities
2016
usnD

142,635

142,035

2016
UsDh
90,923

A 10 % strengthening of USD against the 7AR at 31 March 2017 would have increased net profit
before tax by USD 90,923 (2016: USD 90,523). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in

particular interest rates. rermain constant. The analysis was performed on th

e same basis in 2016,

Similarly a 10 percent weakening of the USD aguinst the ZAR at 3} March 2017 would have had

the exact reverse effect.

s [nierest rate risk

Interest rafe risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

in market interest rajes

The sensitivity analysis befow has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates ai the
reporting date. A 50 basis point increase or decraase ig used when reporting interest rate risk.

If interest rates has been 50 basis points {(bps) bigherslower and ali other variables heid constant, the
loss for the vear ended 31 March 2017 would increase/(decrease) by USD 105 (2016: USD [G5)
alteibutable W the Company exposure to interest raics on variable rate of interest,
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5.

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk mapagement (continucd)

(b} Financial risk management (confinued}

»  nierest rate risk (continwed}

Before sensitivity
analysis

Loan receivable

After sensitivity
analysis
+ 30bps

i.oan receivable

Increase/(decrease) in

foan interesi receivable

Credii risk

Basic interest

rate
2017 2016
(9.25-
10.5% 10.5%)

Basic interest

rate
2017 2016
{9.25-
10.5% 10.5%)

Average principal

amount
2017 2016
UsD USD
2,071,818 2,071,818

Average principal

arount
2617 2016
USD UsD

2,471,818

AU/L,818

Interest
accrued
2017 2016
UsD £SD
220,562 202,03
interest
accrued
2017 2016
Ushb usp
224,006 UL,y

el
L
o]
'S

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterpaity to a financial
instrument fails to meet contractual obligations, and arises from the Company’s loan receivable,
other receivable and cash and cash equivalents,

The Company also timils its exposure to credit risk by dealing or investing only with counterparties
that has a good credit rating and management does not expect counter-parties 1o fail to meet their

obligations.

The carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as fotlows;
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5,

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)
(c) Financial risk munagentent (condinted)
Credit risk {continued)

Fxpasure to credil visk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
credit risk at the reporting date was:

2017 2016

1UsSb uspD

Available-for-sale financial assets 909,234 909,234
Loan receivable 2,968,562 2,748,000
Other receivable 1,056,000 590,000
Cash and cash equivalents 71 47,539

Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall dne  The Campany’s approach 0 manage Jiquiditv is to ensure. as far as possible that it will
abways have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Company's reputation.

Within one Within one to

year [ive years Total
31 March 2017 {spb usn UsSh
Financiai linbilities
Other payables 311,150 - 316,150
UsD UsD uspD
31 Muarch 2616
Financial liabilities
Other pavables 142,635 - 142,635
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6. Revenne

Revenue represents:

Management service fees

Finance income

Interest income

bicome tax

2017
UsDh

559,000

220,562

559,000

2016
USD

202,032

The Company is subject to income tax in Mauritius at the rate of 15%. However, the Company is
entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of the foreign tax paid and a deemed credit of 80%

of the Mauritian tax on its foreign source income.

Recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Fax for the year
Under-provision of tax for previous yeats

Income rax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax

Profit before taxation

Income tax at 15%
Unauthorised deductions
Foreign tax credit

Tax for the year

27

76,689
125
(61,451}

15,363

75,584
(60,467)

15,117
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8. Taxation (continued)

Current tax liability

Baiance at 01 April

Under-provision of tax for previous years

Tax paid during the year
Tax for the year

Ralance at 31 March

9. Available-for-sale financizl assets

At Q1 Aprit/31 Murch

Name of company

GPT Conerete Products
sSouth Alrica Proprietary
Limited

10, Loan receivable

Loan advanced ta refated company:

Type and number of shares % holding

AL01 April
Additions during the year

At 31 March

AL 0T April
Movement during the vear

At 31 March

Carrying value:
At 31 March

2017 2016
Usp UsD
29,628 14,511
3,067 .
(36,757) .
15,363 15,117
11,301 29,628
2017 2016
USD UsD
909,234

7,500 equity shares

909,234

Country of incorporation

of ZAR 1 each 15 South Africa
2617 2016
Usnh ush
2,071,818 2,026,818
- 45,000
2,071,818 2,071,818
676,182 474,150
220,562 202,032
896,744 676,182
2,968,562

2,748,000

The above loan bears interest at the rate of Prime Lending Rate as applicable in South Africa and

are repayable after one year,
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13,

Other receivables

2017 2016

Usn LisD

Management service fees receivable 1,056,000 590,000
Prepaid expenses 4,362 438
1,068,362 590,438

. Stated capital

2017 2016

UsD UsD

2,125,000 ordinary shares of USD | each 2,125,000 2,125,000

The helders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitfed 1o one vele per share at meetings of the Company,

Other payables

AT IN1A
UsD UuspD
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 311,150 142,635

Related party fransactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contro] the other parly or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if they are
subject to common control.

Two directors of the Company are deemed to have beneficial interests in the administration
agreement between the Company, the administrator and Sceretary.
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14. Related party transactions (continued)

During the year under review, the Company entered into the following related party transactions.

2017 2016
TSD LSh
Transaction during the year Nature
Management fees
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd  accrued 559,000 559,000
Management fees
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd  scitled (93,000) {242,000)
GPT Conerete Products South Africa Pty Ltd  Loan advanved - (45,000)
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd  Interest accrued 220,562 202,032
Bulunces outstanding ar 31 March:
Management fees
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Lid  receivable 1,056,000 590,000
GPT Conerete Products South Africa Pty i.td  Loan receivable 2,071,818 2,071,318
GPT Conereie Products South Afirica Pty Lid  Interest receivable 896,744 676,182

Compensation to key management personnel

The Company did not pay any compensation (o its key management personnel during the yaar

LG EREVICYY ot LU, LY

P S N L s Pt
ARSI SOSERA AP S DAY B4 T S

The Company’s primary objectives when managing capitat are to safeguard the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company’s sources
of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capitai may also be affected by the
group’s capital management ohjectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity. Trading balances that arise
as a resull of trading transactions with ather group Companies are not regarded by the Company as
capital.

The Company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group.
The rosults of the dircctors® review of the Company’s capital structure arc used as a basis for the
determination of the level of dividends, il any, that arc declared.

14 Holding company

The Company is & wholly owned subsidiary of GP'T [nfraprojects Limited, a company incorporated
in India and is listed on the Bombay Stock Exehange and the National Stock LExchange of India. Its
registered address is JC-23, Sector-1H, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 098, West Bengal, India.

7. Events subsequent 0 reporiing date

There has been no significant event after the reporting date which requires disclosure or mnendment
to these financial statements,

30
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2017 2016
UsD USD
Revenne
Management service fecs 559,000 559,000
Expenses
Salaries 253,500 243,788
Legai and professional feeg 7,700 4,092
Audit and accounting fees 4,460 4,010
Licence fees 1,751 3,225
Bank charges 885 1,423
268,302 257,138
Profit from operating activities 290,698 301,862
Finance income 220,562 202,032

irofit before taxation 511,268 503,894
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Directors® Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of Namibia ta maintain adequate accounting recards and
are responsible for the content and inlegrity of the-financial statements and related financial information included In
this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then
ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged fo express

an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporiing Standards and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supporied by reasonahble and prudent

judgerrents and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial contral
established by the company and place considerable impartance on maintaining a strong contro environment. To
enable the directors to meet these responsibilifies, the directors sefs standards for intemal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibififies within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of
duties io ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all
employees are required to maintain the highest etnical standards in ensuring the company's business is conducted
in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproash. The focus of risk management in the company
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the company. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours fo minimise it by enstring that appropriate infrastructure,
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and

constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2018 and, in light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company's financial
statemnents. The financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditors and their report is

presented on pages 4 to 6.

The Fnancial statements set out on pages 7 fo 37, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the directors and were signed on their behalf by:

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors By:

i e/

or rector
Windhoek
Date: %ﬁh Mﬁiﬁ ()—D\l



Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Piy) Lid

Cur opinion
In our opinjon, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GPT -
Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Ltd (the Company)' as at 31 March 2017, and its financial performance and

its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia,

‘What we have audited

GPT - Transnamib Conerete Sleepers (Piy) Ltd's financial statements set out on pages o to 35 comprise:
s the directors' report for the year ended 31 March zo17;

o the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017;

= the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

»  the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

«  the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

» thenotes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in aceordance with Internationa] Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 'financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

‘We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B) (JESBA Code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing andits of financial statements in Namibia, We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with this and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to

performing audits in Namibia.

PricewaterhouseCoopers , Registered Auditors, 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, P O Box 1571, Windhoek, Namibia
Practice Number 94086, T:+ 264 (61) 284 1000, F: +264 (61} 284 1001, wwiy.pwe.com/na

Country Senior Parinan R Nangula Uaandia
Partners: Carl P van der tderwe, Louls van der Riel, Anna E) Rossouw, Seratia N Lembaard, Stéfan Hugo, Chenlelt N Husseimann, Gemit Extarhuyse, Talila 8 Hem, Samuet N

Wdahangwape, Hans F Hashagen, Johannes P Nel, Annntie van Colfer



Independent Auditor's Report

Gther information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information corprises company information,
the statement of responsibility of the directors and ihe detailed income statement, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinfon on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Tf, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the reguirements of the Companies Act of Namibia, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concery, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or io cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audif of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Tnternational Siandards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on. the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

PricewaterhouseCoopers , Registered Auditors, 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, P O Box 1571, Windhoek, Namibia
Practice Number 9406, T:+ 264 (61) 284 1000, F: 4264 (61) 284 1001, W pwe.com/na

Country Senior Pariner, R Nanguia Unanda
Partrars: Gari P van dgr Blerwa, Louls van der Riat, Anna EJ Rassouw, Serelta N Lombaard, Stéfan Hugo, Chamell N Hus:
Ndahangwapa, Hans F Hashagen, Johannes P e, Annetle van Celler

setmann, Gerit Esterhuyso, Taiita B Homn, Samual H



Independent Auditor's Report

+  Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control,

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the andit evidence cbtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia] staternents, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned seope and timing of the audit
and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we identify during our

audit, -
W(MUWW

/PricewaterhouseCoopers

Per: Samue] N Ndahangwapo
Pariner

Windhoek

Date: O%"O % ,.,9:0\1]_
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GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Ltd

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Directors' Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of GPT - Transnamib Concrete
Sleepers (Piy) Lid for the year ended 31 March 2017.

1. Incorporation

The company was incorporated on 05 August 5010 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the same
day.

2. Nature of business

GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Fiy) Ltd was incorporated in Namibia with interests in the Manufacturing
industry. The company cperates in Namibia.

There have been no material changes fo the nature of the company's business from the prior yeaf.
3. Review of financial results and activities

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia. The accounting policies have been applied consistently

compared to the prior year.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these
financial statements.

4. Share capital

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.
5. Dividends

An ordinary dividend of N$ 5,000,000 {2016: N§ 20,000,000) was declared to the shareholders.

6. Directorate

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Directors Nationality Changes

Mbingee W, Hindjou Namibian

Kunetsa K. Kufakowadya Namibian Resigned 17 November 2016
Mbzahupa H. Tfivikua Namibian

Atul Tantia Indian

Niraj K. Sinha Indian

Shafa WM. Kauiinge Namibian

Siruggle T. thuhua Namibian Resigned 17 November 2016
Dantagos N. Jimmy Namibian Appointed 17 November 2016

Ferdinand Ganaseb Appointed 17 November 2016

7. Property, plant and egquipment

There was no change in the nature of the property, piant and equipment of the company or in the policy regarding
their use.

At 31 March 2017 the company's investment in property, plant and equipment amounted fo N$23,165,663 (2016
NG 25,730,483), of which N$2,231,005 {2016: N§ 6,528,723) was added in the current year through additions.

There were no commitments in the year under review (2016: N$830,536).



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pfy) Lid

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Directors' Report

8. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this
repori.

8. Going concern -

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to
sufficient borrowing facilities fo meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new
material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors are also not aware of any material non-
compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legistation which may aifect the

company.
10. Audifors
PricewaterhouseCoopers continued in office as auditors for the company for 2017.

i1. Secretary

The company had no secretary during the year under review, however, PricewaterhouseCoopers Tax & Advisory
Services (Pty) Ltd acted as company secretary during the year.



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Ltd

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017

2017 2016
Note(s) N$ N3

Assets

Non-Cutrent Assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 23,165,663 25,730,483

Current Assets

Inventories 5 1,753,015 1,832,763

Trade and other receivables 6 29,612,378 2,963,674

Other financial assels 7 - 23,056

Prepaymenis 8 1,557,479 3,452 871

Current tax receivable g 401,442 -

Cash and cash equivalents 10 2,290,829 4,043,252
35,615,143 12,315,716

Total Assels 58,780,806 38,046,199

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital 11 12,500,000 12,500,000

Reserves 3,750,000 3,750,000

Retained income 15,981,376 8,869,454
32,231,376 26,119,454

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred tax i2 3,398,855 2,508,961

Gurrent Liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 13,219,123 8,177,058

Current tax payable 8 931,094 242,729

Bank overdraft 10 8,989,358 -
23,149,575 9,419,784

Total Liabilities 26,549,430 11,926,745
58,780,808 38,046,198

Total Equity and Liabilities




GPT - Transhamib Concrete Sleepers (Piy) Lid

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
Note(s) N3 N$

Revenua 14 52,188,184 73,393,606
Cost of sales 15 {28,526,585) {39,600,231)
Gross profit 33,661,599 33,793,465
Other income 16 141,279 278,841
Operating expenses (20,673,861) (23,891,022)
Operating profit 17 13,129,017 10,082,284
Investment incorme 18 1,774 10,030
Finance costs 18 (36,981) {307,383)
Profit before taxation 13,093,810 9,784,931
Taxaticn 20 (1,581,888) (1,741,811)
Profif for the year 11,111,822 8,043,120
Other comprehensive income - -

11,111,922 8,043,120

Total comprehensive income for the year

10



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Ltd

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Changes in Equity

Share capital Capital Retained Total equity
Redemption income
Reserve
Fund
N$ N$ N$ N$
Balance at 01 April 2015 12,500,000 3,750,000 2_1,826,334 38,076,334
Profit for the year - - 8,043,120 8,043,120
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 8,043,120 8,043,120
Dividends - - (20,000,000) {20,000,000)
Total contributions by and distributions to - - {20,000,000) {20,000,000)
awners of company recognised directly in
equity
Balance at 01 April 2016 12,500,000 3,750,000 9,869,454 26,119,454
Profit for the year - - 11,111,822 11,111,922
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 11,114,922 11,111,922
Dividends - - {5,000,000) (5,060,000)
Total confributions by and distributions o - - {5,000,000) (5,000,000}
owners of company recognised directly in
aquity .
Balance at 31 March 2017 42,500,000 3,750,000 15,981,376 32,231,376
11

Note(s)

11



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Ltd

Financial Statemsnts for the year ended 31 March 2617

Statement of Cash Flows

2017 2016

Note(s) N$ N$
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 36,862,857 78,152,173
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (39,569,411}  {51,061,718)
Cash generated from (used in) operations 23 (2,708,554) 28,100,455
fnjerest income 22 1,774 10,030
Finance costs 23 {36,981) (307,383)
Tax paid 24 {802,071) {2,160,980)
Net cash from operating activities {3,543,832) 25,642 142
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (2,231,005) {6,528,723)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 4 - 1,320,970
Sale of financial asseis 9 23,056 (1,255)
Net cash fromf{to} investing activifies {2,207,949) (5,209,008)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of preference share liability - {2,260,587)
Dividends paid 25 (5,000,000) (20,000,000}
Net cash (from)ito financing activities (5,0600,000) (22,260,587)
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts movement for the (10,751,781) {1,827,453)
year
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 4,043,252 5,870,705
Total cash, cash equivaients and bank overdrafts af end of the year 10 {6,708,529) 4,043,252

12



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Ltd

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies

1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance
with, internaficnal Financlal Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these financial statements and the
Companies Act of Namibia.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainfy

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions {o
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.
Critical fjudgements in applying accounting policies

The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those involving
estimations, ihat have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, are

outlined as follows:
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Trade receivables

The company assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of gach reporting period. In determining
whether an impairment [oss should be recorded in profit or loss, the company makes judgements as to whether
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the financial

asset.
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolfete invenfory

Management assesses whether inventory is impaired by comparing its cost to its estimated net realisable value.
Where an impairment is necessary, inventory items are written down io net realisable value. The write down is

included in cost of sales.

Impairment testing

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverabie
amount by performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions. When it is not possible o determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management
assesses the recoverable amount for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

13



GPT - Transnamib Concreie Sleepers (Pty) Lid

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued}

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management assess the apptopriateness of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives of motor vehicles, furniture and computer equipment are determined based on
company replacement policies for the various assefs. Individual assets within these classes, which have a
significant carrying amount are assessed separately to consider whether replacement will be necessary outside of
normal replacement parameters. The useful life of manufacturing equipment is assessed annually based on factars
including wear and tear, technological obsolescence and usage requirements.

When the estimated useful life of an asset differs from previous estimates, the change is applied prospeciively in
the determination of the depreciation charge. '

Provisions

Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best information available. Additional
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible asseis which the company holds for its awn use or for rental to others
and which are expected to be used for more than one year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cast includes all of the expenditure which is directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing cosis on
qualifying assets and adjustments in respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and
equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day fo day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, except for land which is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is avallable for use as intended by managementi, Depreciation
is charged to write off the asset's canying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using
a method that best reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the company.
L eased assets are depreciated in a consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease
term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying
amount, Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earfier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or

derecognised.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

ftem Depreciation method  Average useful Jife
Leasehold improvemenis Straight line 10 years

Plant and machinery Straight line 10 years

Furniture and fixtures Sfraight line 5 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 5 years

Office equipment Straight line 5 years

IT equipment Straight line 5 years

14



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty} Ltd

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies

1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The residual value, useful iife and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
year, If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in

accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation o the total cost of the
item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another assel.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fufure economic benefits are
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.4 Financial instruments

Classification

The cormpany classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
+  Loans and receivables
»  Financial liahilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place
at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through profit or

loss category.
Initiaf recognition and measurement

Financial insiruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the insiruments.

The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recoghiticn as a financial asset, a
financiat liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or [oss.

Subsequent measurement

Financia! instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair vaiue, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value being included in profit or [oss for the period.

Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss include dividends and interest.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

15
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Financial instruments {continued)

Fair value determination

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instrumenis that are subsfantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as litile

as possible on entity-specific inputs.
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the company assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been

impaired.

For amounts due to the company, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankrupicy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Impairment [osses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recegnised, subject o the restriction that the carrying
amount of the financial asset af the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified as available-
for-sale.

Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees
These financial assets are ciassified as loans and receivables.

Trade and ofther receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequenily measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficuities of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankrupicy or financial recrganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initiat recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a frade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as [oans and receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initizlly measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

16
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Accounting Policies

4.4 Financial instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily converiible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These are initielly and subsequently recorded at fair value.

Bank overdraft and borrowings

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the seitlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the

company's accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Bank overdraft and borrowings are clagsified as current liabilities uniess the company has an unconditional right fo
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the statement of financial position date.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities.

The dividends on these preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as interest expense.

1.5 Income tax
Current tax assets and Habilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a fiability. If the amount already'paid
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those pericds, the excess is recognised as an

asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction,

as¥fects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred fax
asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability In a transaction at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss),

A defeired tax asset is recognised for the carry sorward of unused fax lesses and unused STC credits to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused STC

credits can be ufilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting perioad,
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15 Income tax {coniinued)

Income tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recogn%sed as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period,

except fo the extent that the fax arises from:
+ a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive

income, or
= a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items
that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different pericd, directly in equify.

1.6 I[nvenfories
Inveniories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual casts.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use fo the entily.

1.7 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities.

1.8 Employee benefits

Shoré-ferm empiocyee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entilement or, in the case of nan-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
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1.8 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
»  the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
» it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the

obligation; and .
.  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to seftle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to setile a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party,
the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtuglly certain that reimbursement will be
received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating iosses.

If an entity has a contract that is cnerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and
measured as a provision.

1.10 Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
«  the company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

«  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
« itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company; and
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in profit of loss, using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue compriges of income earned on the sales of sleepers. Revenue is recognised at the dafe the inveoice is
issued and the goods are ready for dispatch.

1.11 Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of these inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the periad the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, 1s recognhised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.
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1.12 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Namibia Dollars, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency af the date of the

fransaction.

At the end of the reporting period:
+  foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
+  non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated using

the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
»  non-monetary ftems that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements
are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they arise.
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2.  New Standards and interpretations
21 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published
and are mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or aiter 01 April 2017 or later periods:

Standard/ Inferpretation: Effective date: Expected impact:
Years beginning on or
after
. Amendment fo |AS 7 — Cash flow statements 01 January 2017 Unlikely there will be 2
material impagt
s+ |FRS 16 - Leases 01 January 2019 Uniikaly there will be a
material Impact
«  Amendment to 1AS 12 — Income taxes 01 January 2017 Unlikely there will be a

taterial impact
Recognition of deferred tax asseis for unrealised

losses.
« IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (2009 &2010) 01 January 2018 Unlikely there will be &
sFinancial liabilities material impact

Derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets
«General hedge accounting

» [FRS 8 Financial Instrumenis 04 January 2018 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
» |FRS 15 Reveriue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2017 Uniikely there will be a

material impact

3. Risk management

Capital risk management

The company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for members and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings {excluding derivative financial
liabilities) disclosed in notes , cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 10, and equity as disclosed in the
staternent of financial position.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is caleulated as fotal borrowings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings' as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as 'equity' as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt

There are no externally imposed capital requirement.

The gearing ratio at 2017 and 2016 respectively were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 10 6,708,529 (4,043,252)
Net debt 6,708,529 (4,043,252)
Total equity 32,231,376 26,119,454

Total capital 38,839,905 22,076,202

Gearing ratio 17 % {18)%

Financial risk management
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3. Risk management (confinued)

The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair vaite
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating endities of the company in and aggregated by comparny finance.
Company finance monitors rolling forecasts of the company's fiquidity requirements to ensure i has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all
times so that the company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the company's debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal statement of financial position ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory or legal
requirements — for example, currency restrictions.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above balance required for working capital management are
transferred to the company treasury. Company freasury invests surpius cash in interest bearing current accounts,
time deposits, money market deposits and marketable securities, choesing instruments with appropriate maturities
or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient head-rcom as determined by the above-mentioned forecasts.

The table helow analyses the company's financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financlal [labiliies into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual mafurity date. The
amounis disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal

their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Comparative information has been restated as permitted by the amendments to IFRS 7 for the liquidity risk
disclosures.

At 31 March 2017 Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over § years
year and 2 years and 5 years

Trade and other payables 9,028,022 - - -

Bank overdraft 8,969,358 - - -

At 31 March 2016 Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over b years
year and 2 years and 5 years

Trade and other payables 8,297,821 - - -
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3. Risk management {continued)

Interest rate risk

At 31 March 2017, if interest rates on Namibia Dollar-denominated borrowings had been 0.1% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been N$ 8,959 (2016: N$ nil) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings; other components of equity would
have been N$ 8,999 (2016: N$ nil) lower/higher mainly as a result of a decreasefincrease in the fair value of fixed
rate financial assets classified as available for sale.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrurment will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. this poses a risk as the company borrows and places funds
in financial instruments at both fixed and floating interest rates.

The risk is managed by maintaining an approximate mix between fixed and floating interest rates, and by matching
the underlying profiles of borrowings and investments based on asset and liability principles.

Interest rate effect on profi

Effect on profit 2017
100bp 100bp
increase in decrease in
market market
Overdraft facility 89,994 {89,994)

Cash flow inierest rafe risk

Current Due in less Due in one to Due intwoto Due inthree Due after five
interest rate thanayear twoyears three years {o four years years
Qverdraft facilities used 11.75 % 8,999,358 - - - -

Fair value interest rate risk

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors.
The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one

counter-party.

The main customer for the eniity is the Ministry of Works and Transport, a state goverrunient institution that has no
default payment in the past.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2017 20186
Cash and cash equivalents 2,284,829 4,034,361
Trade receivables (excluding VAT and Inland Revenue) 29,265,691 2,063,675

Foreign exchange risk

The company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from varigus currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the Euro, US dollar and the UK pound. Foreign exchange risk arises from future

commercial iransactions, recognised assets and liabilities.
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3. Risk management (continued)

Foreign currency exposure at the statement of financial position date

Current assefs
Trade debtors 03,867 - 256,871
Liabilities
Trade payables 71,867 35433
Price risk
The company is not exposed to material price risk.
4. Property, piant and equipment
2017 2016
Costor  Acoumulated  Carrying Costor  Accumulated  Carrying
revaluation depreciation value revaluation depreciation value
Leasehold improvements 7,635,105 (5,999,647) 1,636,548 7,460,332 (5,688,880) 1,771,452
Plant and machinery 57,151,628 (36,950,332) 20,201,298 55,096,487 (32,868,716) 22,227,771
Furniture and fixtures 143,280 (134,969) 8,321 143,280 (124,514) 18,776
Motor vehicles 3,122,121 (1,824,355} 1,297,766 3,122,121 (1,447,700) 1,674,421
Office equipment 54,886 (39,961) 14,925 54,886 (32,270) 22,616
iT equipment 119,730 (112,823) 6,807 119,730 (104,283) 15,447
Total 68,227,850 (45,062,187) 23,165,663 65,996,846 (40,266,363) 25,730,483
Reconciiiation of property, pfant and equipment - 2017
Opening Additions  Depreciation Tatal
balance
Leasehold improvements 1,771,462 175,863 (310,767) 1,836,548
Plant and machinery 22,227,711 2,055,142  (4,081,617) 20,201,286
Furniture and fixtures 18,776 - {10,455) 8,321
Motor vehicles 1,674,421 - (376,655) 1,297,766
Office equipment 22,616 - {7.691) 14,928
[T equipment 15,447 - {8,640) 6,807
25,730,483 2,231,005 (4,795,825} 23,165,663
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016
Cpening Additions Disposals  Transfers Depreciation Total
balance
Buildings 2,485,362 £80,839 - - {1,394,740) 1,771,452
Plant and machinery 11,162,431 2,518,682 - 18,111,086 (9,565,328) 22,227,771
Furniture and fixtures 48,001 - - - {27,225) 18,776
Motor vehicles 943,981 1,661,377  (1,320,970) - 300,033 1,674,421
Office equipment 33,080 - - - {10,464) 22,616
IT equipment 38,196 - - - {22,749) 15,447
Capital work in progress 16,444,157 1,667,825 - (18,111,082) - -
31,153,208 6,528,723 (1,320,970} 4 (10,630,482} 25,730,483
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2017 2016
N§ - N$
4. Property, plantand equipment (continued}
The capital work in progress relates to the construction of the third production line.
Construction of this facility was compieted during the 2016 financial year. There were
no capital work in progress during the current financial year.
5. Inventories
Raw materials, compenents 1,753,015 1,832,783
6. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 28,195,191 2,963,674
Employee costs in advance - 70,500 -
Dther receivable (Receiver of Revenue) 346,687 -
29,612,378 2,963,674
Split between non-current and current portions
Current assets 29,612,378 2,963,678
Credit quality of trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Counterparties without external credit rating .
Ministry of Works & Transport (existing client without history of default) 29,137,786 2,180,289
Trade and other receivables past due but not impalfred
Trade and other receivables which are less than 6 manths past due are not considerad
to be impaired. At 31 March 2017, N$ 21 546,586 (2016: N$ 3,296) were past due but
not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
1 month past due 5,946,838 -
2 months past due 5,906,532 -
3 months past due and over 5,693,115 3,206
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2017 2016
N$ N$
7. Ctherfinancial assels
At fair value through profit or loss - designated
FNB unit trusts - 23,056
Current assefs
At fair value through profit or loss - 23,056
The fair values of the financial assets were determined as follows:
+  The fair values of listed or quoted investmenis are based on the guoted
rnarket price.
- The fair values on investments not listed or quoted are estimated using
the discounted cash flow analysis,

Fair values are determined annually at balance sheet date.
8. Prepayments
Prepayments 1,557,479 3,452 971
8. Current tax receivable / (payable)
The current tax balance is made up as follows:
Current tax receivable
Current tax receivable 401,442 -
Current fax payable
Current tax payable {931.,094) (242,729)
Total current tax receivable / (payable) {529,652} (242,729}
Provision for taxation
Opening balance {(242,729) (51,284)
Provision for the year {1,088,594) (2,352 405)
Provisional tax payment 500,000 1,788,920
Prior year top-up payment 302,071 372,040

{529,652) {242,7289)
Balance of provision for taxation consists of:
2016 - (242,729)
2017 {529,652} -
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2017 20186
NS N$
10, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 5,877 8,891
Bank baiances 2,284,952 4,034,361
Bank overdraft (8,959,358) -
(6,708,529) 4,043,252
Current asseis 2,290,828 4,043,252
Current liabilities (8,998,358) -
{6,708,529) 4,043,252
As at vear end the entity had an unsecured short-term overdraft facility of N3
9,000,000 {2016:N$ Nil) with First National Bank of Namibia Limited. The company has
ceded its debtors in favour of the bank as security for the overdraft facility.
Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding casfi on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short tarm deposits, excluding cash on hand that
are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default rates:
Credit rating
First National Bank P-2(zaf) (8,702,652) 4,034,361
14. Share capital
Authorised
12.500,00 Ordinary sharas of N§' @ach 12,500,000 12,500,000
Authorised
Redeemable cumulative preference shares 3,750,000 3,750,000
Share premium 33,750,000 33,750,000
37,500,000 37,500,000
fssued
12,500,000 12,500,000

12,600,000 Ordinary shares of N3t gach
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2017 2016
N$ N§

12. Deferred tax
Deferred tax fiability
Property plant and equipment {2,980,501) (2,250,378)
inventory {145,360) (141,796)
Short term unreaiised forex gains - {38,663)
Prepayments (275,824) (101,227)
Total deferred tax liability (3,411,685} (2,532,064)
Deferred tax asset
Provisions " 11,830 25,103
The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same
jurisdiction, and the law aliows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the
statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax liability {3,411,685) (2,532,084)
Deferred tax asset 11,830 25,103
Total net deferred tax liability {3,399,855) {2,506,961)
Deferred tax liability {3,411,685) (2,532,064)
Deferred taxation liabiiity to be recovered after more than 12 months (2,501,884) (2,532,084},
Deferred taxation liability io be recovered within 12 months (209,301) -
Deferred tax asset 11,830 25,103
Deferred taxation asset fo be recovered after more than 12 months - 25,103
Deferred faxation asset to be recovered within 12 months 11,830 -
Total net deferred tax liahility {3,399,855) {2,506,961)
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / {liability)
At beginning of year (2,506,961) (3,117,556)
Increases (decrease) in leave pay provision of deferred tax asset (13,273) -
Taxable / (deductible) temporary ditference movement on tangible fixed (740,123) -
assets
Taxable / (deductible} temporary difference on inventory (3,564) -
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference on prepayments (174,597) -
Taxable / (deductible} temporary difference on short term unrealised 38,663 -
forex gains
Timing difference recognised through profit/loss - 510,595

{3,399,855) (2,506,961)
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2017 2016
N$ N§
43. Trade and other payables
Trade payables 8,928,022 8,297,821
VAT 3,121,823 649,503
Royalty provision - (26,888)
Leave pay provision 169,278 256,619
13,219,123 9,177,055
14. Revenue
Sale of goods 52,188,184 73,393,696
15, Cost of sales
Cost of goods sold 28,526,585 39,600,231
46. Other income
Scrap sales 141,469 35,547
Suppier write off 20,217 -
Profit and loss on sale of assets and liabilities - 29,501
Profit on exchange gains 9,593 214,793
441,279 279,841
17. Operating profit (loss)
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst
ofhers:
Auditor’s remuneration - external
Audit fees 175,299 205,684
Other services 66,101 -
241,400 205,984
Remuneration, other than to employees
Consulting and professional services © 2,598,168 177,833
Secretarial services 21,000 29,200
2,619,168 207,133
Employee cosls
Salaries, wages, banuses and other benefits 7,252,120 6,269,288
Leases
Operating lease charges
111,801 523,270

Contractual amounis
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2017 2016
N$ N§

17. Operating profit {loss) (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 4,785,825 10,630,482
Other
Other operating gains (losses) - 244 294
Expenses by nature
The total cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, marketing expenses, generai
and adminisirative expenses, research and development expenses, maintenance
expenses and other operating expenses are analysed by nature as follows:
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 28,526,585 38,600,231
Employee costs 7,252,120 6,269,289
Operating lease charges 111,601 523,270
Depreciation, amostisation and impairment 4,795,825 10,630,482
Other exXpenses 6,985,485 4,275,689
Transport and freight 181,777 671,051
Repairs and maintenance 761,416 1,105,489
Motor vehicle expenses 585,637 515,842

49,200,446 63,591,253
18. Investment income
Interest income
Bank 1,774 10,030
19, Finance costs
Trade and other payables 36,981 29,270
Finance costs on preference shares - 278,113

36,981 307,383

Total finance costs
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2017 2016
N$ N§
20. Income fax expense
Major components of the incame tax expense
Current
Local income tax - current period 4,088,994 2,039,713
Local income tax- recognised in current tax for prior periods - 312,682
1,088,994 2,352,405
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences 889,251 {610,594)
Arising from prior period adjustments 3,643 -
892,894 (610,594}
1,981,888 1,741,811
Reconciliation of the income tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting profit 13,083,810 5,784,831
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 18% (2016: 18%) 2,356,886 1,761,288
Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Prior period adjustment - 343,643
Tax effect of permanent differences - {363,120)
2,356,886 1,741,811

31



GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Lid
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Financial Statementis

2017 2016
N§ N$
21. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses
The following items are included within depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses:
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment 4,795,825 10,630,482
During the current year, the company revised its estimates on depreciation for a further
useful lives of 5 years of the Leasehold improvements and Plant and Machinery. The
initial contract of 5 years came to an end and the company is currently in negotiation
with it's main customer (the Ministry of Works & Transport) to extend their contract.
The Ministry of Works & Transport shows interest in the further manufacturing of
concrete sleepers.
22. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied fo the line items
below:
2017
Financial Total
lizbilities at
armortised
cost
Trade and other payables 9,928,022 9,928,022
Bank overdraft 8,999,358 8,999,358
18,927,380 18,927,380
2016
Financial Total
liabilities at
amortised
cost
Trade and other payables 8,297,821 8,297,821
23. Cash generated from (used in) operations
Profit before taxation 13,093,810 9,784,931
Adfjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 4,795,825 10,630,482
[nterest income (1,774) (10,030)
Finance costs 36,981 307,383
Profit on foreign exchange - (214,793)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 79,748 1,086,365
Trade and other receivables (26,648,704) 7,812,804
Prepayments 1,885,492 (1,626,164}
Trade and other payables 4,042,068 (567,623)
(2,706,554) 28,100,455
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2017 2016
N$ N$
24, Tax paid
Balance at beginning of the year (242,729) {51,284)
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or foss (1,088,884) (2,352,405}
529,852 242,729

Balance at end of the year

25. Dividends paid

Dividends

26. Commitmenis
Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for
»  Property, plant and equipment

(802,071) (2,160,960)

(5,000,000  (20,000,000)

- 830,536

This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by avallable bank
facilities, retained profits, rights issue of shares, issue of debentures, mortgage

facilities, existing ¢cash resources, funds internally generated, etc.

27. Related parties

Relationships
Sharehcider with significant influence

Shareholder
Key management

Directors

Transhamib Holdings Limited

GPT Infraprojects Limited

Doros lnvestment Number Twenty Two (Ply) Ltd
Harsh V. Roongta (Chief Operating Officer)
M Kanniyappan (Manager - Engineering
Logistics & Management Service)

DK Jaimani (Factory Manager)

Mbingee W. Hindjou

Ferdinand Ganaseb

Mbahupa H. Tjivukua

Nirgj K. Sinha

Shafa M. Kaulinge

Dantagos N. Jimmy

Atul Tantia
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2017 2016
N$ N§

27. Related parties {(continued)
Related party bafances
Amounts included in trade receivable/ (payable) regarding related
parties
Ministry of Works and Transport 29,137,786 2,190,289
GPT Infraprojects Limited {71,867) (35,433)
GPT Concreta Products South Africa (Ply) Limited (2,500,000) (442,400}
Shareholder's liability
GPT Infraprojects Limited 40,000 40,000
GPT Infraprojects: Royalty provision 53,867 216,971
Poros Investment - 650,000
Transnamib Holdings - 2,500,000
Advance payment o refated parties

70,000 -

Dorros Investment

Related party transactions

Purchase/ {Sale) of goods

Ministry of Works and Transport

GPT Concrete Products South Africa {Pty) Limited

Key management
Salaries

Royalties
GFT Infraprojects (Pty) Ltd

Compensation fo directors
Short-term empioyee benefils

28. Directors’ emoluments
Non-executive

2017

Director fees

2016

Director fees

(60,028,148)

(69,982,886)

9,612,128 3,304,684
2,778,116 2,428,883
704,214 850,618
809,724 508,060
Emoluments Total
899,724 899,724
Emoluments Total
508,000 508,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2017 2016
NS NS
29, Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items
below:
2017
Loans and Total
receivables
Trade and other recelvables 20,265,691 29,265,691
Cash and cash equivalents 2,280,829 2,290,829
31,556,620 31,556,520
2016
Loans and Total
recelvables
Other financial assets 23,056 23,056
Other 2,953,678 2,963,678
Cash and cash equivalents 4,043,252 4,043,252
7,029,986 7,029,986
30. Change in estimate
Property, plant and equipment
The useful lives of Leasehold improvemenis and Plant and Machinery were estimated
in 2016 to be 5 years. In the current period management have revised their estimates
to 10 years. The effect of this revision has reduced the depreciation charges for the
current and future periods by N$ (5,483,711)
31. Prior period errors
in the prior period, the capital redemption reserve fund was incorrectly fransferred to
retained earnings. This has been corrected in the current year.
The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:
Statemnent of Financial Position
Capital redemption reserve fund - (3,750,000}
3,750,000

Retained earnings -
32. Reclassifications

During the current year, the balance for preference share liability of N$ 40,000 have
veen reclassified to trade and other payables.
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GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Lid

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Detailed Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
Note{s) N$ N$
Revenue
Sale of goods 62,188,184 73,393,696
Cost of sales
Purchases (28,526,588) (39,600,231)
Gross profit 33,661,599 33,793,465
Other income
Scrap sales 111,469 35,547
Other income 20,217 -
Gain on disposal of assets or settlement of liabilities - 29,501
Foreign exchange gains 9,993 214,793
18 141,279 279,841

Expenses (Refer to page 37) (20,673,861) {23,991,022)
Operating profit 17 13,129,017 10,082,284
Investment income 18 1,774 10,030
Finance costs 19 (36,981) (307,383)
Profit before taxation 13,093,810 9,784,931
Taxation 20 (1,981,888) {1,741,811)
Profit for the year 11,111,822 8,043,120
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GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty} Ltd

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Detailed Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
Note(s) NS N$
Other operating expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Motor vehicle expenses {585,637) {515,842)
Postage {20,131) (40,051)
Transport and freight (181,777) (671,051)
(787,545) (1,226,944)

Marketing expenses
Advertising (23,979) {48,078)
General and administrative expenses
Auditors remuneration - external auditors 17 (241,400} (205,984)
Bank charges {173,502) (194,419)
Computer expenses {16,983) {12,006)
Depreciation (4,795,825)  (10,630,482)
Employee cosis {7,252,120) (6,269,289)
Insurance (211,242) {204,923)
Lease rentals on operating fease (111,601) (523,270)
Levies {5,838) (468)
Water and elactricity (682,917} (890,240)
Printing and stationery (118,068} (44,963}
Secretarial fees (21,000} (29,200)
Telephone and fax (26,760} (32,920)

{13,657,256) (19,038,174)
Maintenance expenses
Repairs and maintenance {761,416) (1,105,498)

37

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited



n

TR 2

GPT - Transnamib Concrete Sleepers (Pty) Lid

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Detailed Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017 20186
Note(s) N$ N$

Other operafing expenses
Cleaning {12,440) (13,256)
Consulting and professional fees (2,555,416) (142,944)
Consulting and professional fees - legal fees {42,753) (34,989}
Consumables - (18,433)
Donations {34,500) {19,006)
Entertainmeant {14,554) {25,800)
Office expenses {12,538) {19,656)
Safety equipment (1,659) (5,428)
Training expenses - (750)
Miscellaneous expenses {4,891) (160)
Sundry asset write off - (200}
Fines and penalties (126,268) (189,618)
Gifis {5,448) (44,583)
Protective clothing {48,124) {39,891)
Royalties {704,214) (850,618)
Sectrity {71,395) (126,512)
Staif welfare (867,556) (88,904)
Travel - local (82,872) (80,147)
Travel - overseas (1,149,038) {857,538)
{5,443,665) {2,572,327)
(20,673,861)  (23,991,022)
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General Information

Country of incarporation and domicile
Nature of business and principal activities

Directors

Registered office

Business address

postal address

Auditors

Secretary

South Africa
Manufacturlng and sales of railway concrete sleepers

Dwarlka Prasad Tantia
Atul Tantia
Lawrence Thulani Mthethwa

Houghton Estate Office Park
20d Floor Palm Grove
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Houghton
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Ladysmith
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Ernst & Young Inc.
Chartered Accourtants {5.5.}
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ER Goodman Secretarial Services cC




- . . "
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Propristary Limited

{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Index

The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements presented to the shareholders:
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Directors’ Respansibilities and Approval q
independent Auditors’ Report 56
Directors’ Repart 7
Statement of Financial Position 8
Statement of Comprehensive income 2
Statement of Changes in Equity 10
Statement of Cash Flows 11
Accounting Policies 12-17
Notes 1o Financial Statements 18.27
The following supplementary information does not form part of the financial statements and Is unaudited:

23-29
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GPT Cancrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
[Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financlal Statement for the year endad March 31, 2017

Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required by the Companies Act 21 of 2008, to maintaln adequata accounting records
and are responsible for the content and Integrity of the flnancial statements and related financial
nformation included {n this raport, Jt js thelr respansibility to ensure that the financlal statements fafriy
prasent the state of affalrs of the company as ot the end of the ({Inancial year and the results of {ts
opermatlons and cosh flow for the period then ended, fn conformity with the Intecnationat Financial
Reporting Standards. The externat audltors are engaged to express an (ndependent opinion on the
finnnciat statements.

The financial staternents are prepared In accordance with the international Financtal Reporting Standards
and are based upen appropdate nccounting policles consistently applied and supparted by reasonable
and prudant judgements and estimates.

Thi directors atknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the systern of internal financial
control established by the compuny and place conslderable importance on maintalning a strang control
enyironment. Te enable the directors to meet these respunsibliides, the board of directors sets stondards
for ineernnt control almed at reducing the risk of ermor or loss fn & cost effective manner. The standards
include the proper delagation of responsibllities within a clear deflned framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of dutles to ensure an acceptable lavet of rlslt. These contrals are
monitared throughout the company and all employess ate required to malntain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the company’s business §s cenduzted In o manner that fn all reasosable
creumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management In the company i3 on identifytng,
assessing, managing and monitering all knovm forms of risks across the company. Whie operating risk
cannot be fully elimipated, thz company endeavours to minimlze it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, contrals, systams and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined
pracedures and constraints.

The directars are of the opinton, hased on the Infermation and explanations glven by managament, that
the systems of {nternal control provides reasonable assurance that the financlal records may be refied on
for the prepamation of the financial statements, However, any system of internat tinanclal contral can
provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assumnce against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flaw feracast far the year to March 31, 2017 and, in the
light of this raview and the current financlat position, they are satisfled that the company has aceess 1o
adequate resaurces to continee In oparationat exlstence for the farssecable future,

The axternal auditors are respansible for independently reviewing and reporting on the company's
finnaclal statements, The financlal statements hava been examined by the company's extamal auditors
and thelr report Is presented on page 5.

The financlal statement set out op pages 7 ta 29, which have been prepared on the golng concermn basls,
were approved by the board of directors an May 10, 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

i AIGTN

tulfTantda

Johanneshurg
10% Hay 2017
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independent Auditar's Repott

To the Shareholders of GPT Concrete Products South Aftica Proprietary Limited
Report on the Audit of the financial Stataments

Opinfen

We bave audited the financial statements of GPT Concrete Products South Africa ABC Proprietary Limited set out on pages 7 to 27
which comprise the statement of financlal position as at 31 March 2017, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensiva income, statement of changes In equity and staternent of ¢ash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of sigaificant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the Anancial statements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial position of GPT Concrete Products
South Africa Proprietary Limlted as at 31 March 2017, and its financlal performance and cash flows far the year then ended in
accordance with Intarnatlonal Financlal Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companles Act of South Africa,

Basis for Opinjon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing [ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibliities for the Audit of the Financiol Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company In accordanca with the (ndependent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors {JRBA Cade), the Internaticnal Ethics Standards Board for Actountants Code of Ethics for Professionol
Accountants (IESBA code} and other Independence requirements applicable to performing the audit of GPT Concrete Products
South Africa Proprietary Limited. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibllities In accordance with the IRBA Cade, IESBA Code,
and In accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing the audit of GPT Concrete Products South Africa
Propristary Limited. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinton.
Other Information

‘The directors are responsible for the other information. The other mformation comprises the Directors’ Report as required by the
Companias Act of South Africa, The other informatian does rot Include the finantial statements and our auditor's report theraon,

Our opinlon on the financlal statements does not caver the other information and we to not express an audit opinion or any farm
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibifity Is to read the other information and, In doing so,
constder whether the other infarmatlon Is materlally Inconsistent with the financial stataments ¢r our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materiatly misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infarmatlon, we are
required to report that fact, We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Finonclal Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with international
financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal controf as the
directors determine Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free fram materlal misstatement,
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misstaternant when it exists. Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the
appregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economie detislons of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAS, we exerclse professional judgernent and maintain professtonal scepticlsm throvghout the
audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and parform audit procedures rasponsive to those risks, and obtaln audit evidence that is sufficient and approprlate to
provide a basls for our opinlon. The risk of not detecting @ materlal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involva collusion, forgery, Intentlonat omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of Internak controk

Obtaln an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit In order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an aplaion on the effectivenass of the company's internal
control.

Evaluate the approprlatenass of accounting policles used and the reasorableness af accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Condude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basls of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the company's ability ta continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainly exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures In the financhal statements or, if such disciosures are
inadequate, to modify our apinian, Dur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor’s
raport. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease {0 continue as a going toncetn,

Evaluate the ovarall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, Including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events In 3 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and ftming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in internal cantrol that we [dentify during our audit.

ém = %ﬂ‘_‘_’ﬂ_

Ernst & Young Inc,
Birector: Charles Mazhindu
Chartered Accountant {SA}
Repistered Auditor

Date; 19 May 2017

Ernst &Young inc
102 Rivonla Road

Sandton



GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year endad March 31, 2017

Directors’ Report

The directors submit their report far the year ended parch 31, 2017,

1. Raview of activities

Maln business and operations

The company is engaged In manufacturing and sale of railway concrete sleepers and operates principally in South Africa.

The operating results and state of affzirs of the company are fully set out In the attached financial statements and do
not in our opinlon require any further comment,

2. Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

3. Authorised and issued share capital

There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the company during the year under review.
4, Directors

The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

‘Name Nationallty Change

Dwarika Prasad Tantia indian No change

Atul Tantia Indian No change

Lawrence Thulani Mthethwa Seuth African No change
. Secratary

The secretary of the company Is £R Goodman Secretarial Services CC of:

Business addrass Houghton Estate Office Park
2" Floor, Palm Grove
2 Osborn Road, Houghton
2198

5. AudHors

Ernst & Young Inc. will continue in office In accordance with section 270{2) of the Companies Act.




GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limitad

{Registration number 2007/031165/07}
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Financial Position

Figures in Rand Notels) 2017 2016

Assats

Non-Cuirent Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 87,853,601 80,846,231%

Operating Lease Asset 642,858 -
87,496,459 80,846,231

Current Assets

inventories 6 31,355,658 39,452,205

Operating Lease Asset 428,572 -

Trade and other receivables 7 27,188,873 11,915,637

Cash and cash equivalents 8 2,548,764 46,870
61,522,868 51,414,812

Total Assets 148,019,327 132,261,043

Equity and Liabllities

Equity

Share Capital g 50,000 50,000

Retalned income 24,328,631 21,748,490
24,378,631 21,798,450

Liabillitles

Non-Current Liabilities

Loans from shareholders 9 29,753,363 22,253,363

Other financlal liabilities 10 - -

Deferred tax 5 10,514,418 9,637,811

T I 40,267,781 31,891,174

Current Liabllities

Accrued interest on loan from shareholders 4 8,082,226 6,580,936

Other financlal liabilities 10 - 9,438,758

Trade and ather payables 13 53,975,564 41,311,316

Pravisions 11 97,263 108,434

Dividend payable 100,000 100,000

Bank overdraft 8 21,217,862 21,030,935
44,372,915 78,571,372

Total Liabilitles 124,640,696 110,462,553

Total Equity and Liabilities 149,018,327 132,261,043




GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited

{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Figures In Rand Natels) 2017 2016
Revenue 14 67,785,259 97,022,377
Cost of sales 15 {53,700,376) {69,514,089)
Gross profit 14,084,283 27,508,288
Other operating income 3,524,635 2,235,560
Administrative and other expenditure (8,739,169) (17,979,146}
Operating profit 16 8,869,749 11,765,702
lnvestment revenue 17 46,227 37,450
Finance cost 18 (5,459,227} {6,050,745)
Profit before taxation 3,456,750 5,752,447
Taxation 1% {876,607} (2,352,787}
Profit for the year 2,580,143 3,399,660
Qther campreheansive income - .
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,580,143 3,398,660




GPT Concrete Products Souih Africa Proprietary Limited

[Reglstration number 2007/D31165/07}

Financtal Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures In Rand Share capital Retained income Total equity
Balance at April D1, 2015 50,000 18,348,829 18,398,829
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,399,660 3,395,660
Dividends - - -
Total changes - 3,399,660 3,399,660
Batance at April 01, 2016 50,008 21,748,489 21,798,489
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive Income for the year . 2,580,143 2.580,143
Dividends - - -
Total changes - 2,580,143 2,580,143
Balance at March 31, 2017 50,600 24,328,631 24,378,631
Note(s} g

10



GFT Concrete Producis South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07}
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Cash Flows

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2017 2016

Cash {lows from operating activities

Cash receipt from customers 56,025,486 104,374,002
Cash psid 1o supplier and employees {33,946,749) (81,819,140}
Cash generated from operations 21 22,078,736 22,554,862
Interest income 46,227 37,490
Finance ¢osts (5,458,227} {6,050,745)
et cash from operating activities 16,665,737 16,541,607
Cash flows from Investing activities

Sale of property, plant and equipment 36,803

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (14,848,205} {3,286,054)
Net cash from investing activities (14,811,402} (3,286,054}
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from other financial ifabitities -

Repayment of other financial Habllities (9,439,758} {13,373,526)
Proceeds from sharsholders' loan 9,901,291 2,634,434
Dividend paid . {2,254,000)
Net cash from financing activities 461,533 (13,033,092}
Totsl cash movement of the year 2,315,868 222,463
Cash at the beginning of the year _ (20,983,965) (21,206,426}
Total cash at end of the year 2 (18,568,008) (20,683,965}

1n



GPT Conarete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07}
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Palicies

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the [nternational Financial Reporting Standards, and
the Companies Act 71 of 2008, The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate
the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Significant judgaments and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management s required to make estimates and assumptions that affact the
amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures, Use of available information and the
application of judgement are inherent In the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be materlal to the financial staternents. Significant judgements include:

Financial assets measured at cost and amortised cost

The company assesses its financlal assets measured at cost and amaortised cost for impairment at each reposting period
date. in determining whether an Impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the
company makes judgements as to whether there are observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows fram a financial asset.

The impairment of financial assets measured at cost and amartised cost Is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on
historical loss ratios, adjusted for nationa! and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the
reporting period that correlate at defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied te loan balances in the
portfolio and scaled to the estimated Iass emergence perlod.

Allowance of slowing moving, damaged and obsalete inventory

An allowance for inventory to write Inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have
made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory itams. The write down is included in the
operating profit note.

Impairment testing

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may niot be recoverzble. In addition, goodwill is only tested for impairment when there is an indicator
of impalrment, Assets are grouped at the lowest [evel for which Identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash
flows of other assats and liabllities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared
af expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value fn use
af goodwill and tangible assets are Inherently uncertaln and could materially change ever time. They are significantly
affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply, and demand together with economic factors
such as exchange rates, inflation, and Interast.

12



GFT Concrete Froducts South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registraticn number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policles

1.1 Significant Judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of fegislation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The company recognises Habllitles for antlclpated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inltially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the peried in which such
determination Is made.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:

« are held for use In the production cr supply of goods or services, for rental to others er for administrative
purposas; and
e are expected to be used during more than one period

Cost include costs incurred Initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part I5 derecognised,

: Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the
useful life of the property, plant and equipment, which is as follows:

item Average usefuf lifa
Buildings 8 years

‘Plant and machinery 8 years

Furniture and fixtures 8 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment B8 years
Laboratory equipment 8 years

Other property, plant and equipment 1vyear

The residual value, depreciation method and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each annual reporting perlod
if there are indicators present that there is a change from the previous estimate. Based on the same the depreclation
has been calculated.

Each part of an {tem of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the tatal cost of the
Item and has significantly different patterns of consumption of economic benefits is depreciated separately over its
useful lifa,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the praceeds with the carrying amount and are recoghized
in profit or loss In the period.

13
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Einancial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policies

1.3 Financial Instruments
Measurement

Initial recognition and measurement - Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party
to the contraciual provisions of the instruments. The company classifies financial instruments, or there component
parts, in Initial recognition 3s a financial asset, a financial llability or an equity instrument in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Subsequent measurement - Financial instrurnent at fair value through profit or ioss are subsequently measured at falr
value with gains and losses arising from changes in the falr value being included in profit or loss for the periad.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are Initlally measured at fair value, and subsequently measured at amartised cost, using the effective
Interest rate method.

Loans to shareholdars
These financial assets are classified as loans and recelvables.
Trade and other receivables

‘Trade recelvables are measured at initial recognition at falr value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash an hand that Is readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fatr value.

Bank overdraft and borrowings

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are Initially measured at fatr value, and are subsaguently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

1.4 Tax
Current tax assets and llabilities

Current tax for current and prior perieds is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a fabllity. If the amount already paid in
respect of current and priot periads exceeds the ameunt due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financlal Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policies

1.4 Tax {cantinued)
Pefarred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability Is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
Hability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability In a transaction which at the time of the transaction,
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry farward of unused tas losses to the extent thatitis probable that future
taxable profit will be avaifable against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is reallsed or the kability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period,

Tax expenses

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to tems that are credited or
charged, In the same or a different perlod, directly to equity.

1.5 Leases

A lease [s classified as a finance leasa if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incldental to ownership, A
lease is classified as an operating lease if It does not transfer substantlally alt the risks and rewards Incldental to
ownership.

Operating [eases - lasses

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on 2 straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contraciual payments are recognised as an operating lease
assat. This fiability Is not discounted.

1.6 Inventories

Inventories are measurad at the lower of cast and selling price less costs to complete and seff, on the weighted average
cost basis. The cast of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of canversion and other costs Incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
invenitories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue s recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net reallsable value and all fosses of Inventories are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down of loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-dowst of inventories, arising from an increase in
the net realisable value, are recognised as a reduction in the amaunt of inventaries recognised as an expense In the
period In which the reversal occurs.

1.7 Impairment of assets

The company assesses at each reporting period date whether there Is any indlcation that an asset may be impairad. If
any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

15
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2607/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policies

1.7 lmpairment of assets {continued)

{F there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
In use.

tf the recaverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced toits
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment ioss.

An lmpairment lass of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreclation or amortisation Is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any Impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An impairment foss is recognised for cash-generating units if the racoverabla amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impalrment loss Is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the
following order:

o first, to reduce the carrylng amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and
« then, to the other assats of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried 8t cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation ather than
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impalrment loss of a revalued asset is treated as
a revaluation increase.

1.8 Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

s the company will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
» the grants will be received

Government grants with no conditions attached are recognised in the income statement immediately.

1.9 Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditlons have been satisfied:

e tha company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of awnership of the goods;

» the company retains neither continuing managerial [nvolvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

» the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flaw to the company; and

s  the costs incurred or to be incurrad in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

16
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Reglstration number 2007/031165/07)
fFinancial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Palicies

1.8 Revenue [continued)

Revenueis measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts recelvabla
for goods and services provided in the normal caurse of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value
added tax, interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

1.10 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitfon, construction or production of a qualifying asset are

capitalised as part of the cost of that asset untll such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:

« actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifylng asset less any
temporary Investment of those barrowlngs

= welghted average of the borrowlng costs applicable to the entlty on funds generally borrowed for the purpose
of obtaining a gualifying asset. The bhorrowing costs capitalised do not excesd the total borrowing costs
incurred

The capitalisation of horrowing costs commences when:

» expenditure for the asset has oceurred
+ borrowing cost has been incurred
«  activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its Intended use or sale are in progress

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

Capitalisation ceases when substantially =it the activitles necessary to prepare the gualifying asset for its intended use
orsale are complete,

All other borrowing ¢osts are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.11 Translations of foreign currencies
Fareign currency translations

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition In Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the spot exchange rate hetween the functional currency and the forelgn currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting perlod:

« foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

= non-monetary Items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are transiated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

v non-menetary items that are measured at falr value In a forelgn currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined

1.12 Cost of sales

When Inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventarias is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is raecognised. The amount of any write-down of inventaries to net realisable value and 2ll losses of
inventeries are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss oceurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of Inventorles, arising from an increase In net realisable value, is recognised as 2 reduction in the amount
of inventories recagnised as an expense In the period in which the reversal occurs.

17



GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Repistration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Flgures In Rand 2017 2016

2. New Standards and {nterpretations

1AS 36 Disclosure requirements for the recoverable amount of impaired assets

The amendment |s effective for annual perlods beginning on or afier 1 January 2014,
{FRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015,
[AS 12 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

This standard is effective for annual periods baginning on or after 1 January 2014.

3. Property, plant and equipment

2017 2016

Cost/ Accumutatad  Carrying Cost/ Accumulated  Carrying

Valuatlon Depreclation  Value Valuation Depreciation  Value
Building 25,280,500  {12,856,577) 12,423,923 25,280,499 {11,357,244) 13,523,256
Leasehold 13,611,177 - 13,611,377
Improvements
plant and machinery 116,316,005  (55,854,408) 60,461,600 115,101,666 (48,807,414} 66,294,252
Furniture and fixiures 185,138 (156,365} 28,773 185,138 {135,537} 49,601
Motor vehicles 845,890 {686,532) 154,358 950,720 {605,457) 345,333
Office equipment 238,311 {201,013) 37,298 238,311 {174,203} 64,108
IT equipment 58,187 (56,813} 1,373 58,187 {53,128} 5,059
Laboratory Equipment 306,869 {220,996} 85,873 306,869 (186,473) 120,396
Other praperty, plant 1,920,168 (1,875,942} 44,226 1,897,479 (1,853,253) 44,226
and equipment
Tatal 158,762,245 (71,908,643} 86,853,602 144,018,938 {63,172,709) 80,846,231

Reconciliation of property, plant & equipment - 2017

Opening Additions / Depreciation  Tetal

Balance {Disposal}
Building 13,923,256 - {1,499,333) 12,423,923
Leasehold Improvements - 13,611,177 . 13,611,177
Plant and machinery 66,294,252 1,214,339 {7.,046,892) 60,461,600
Furniture and fixtures 49,601 . {20,828) 28,773
Mator vehicles 345,333 (36,803) {149,171} 159,358
Office equipment 64,108 - (26,810} 37,248
IT equipment 5,058 - (3,685} 1,372
Laboratory equipment 120,396 . {34,523) 85,873
Other property, plant and equipment 44,226 22,689 {22,889) 44,226

80,846,231 14,811,402 (8,804,031} 86,853,601
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2017 016

3. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Reconclliation of property, plant & equipment - 2016

Opening Additions / Depreclation Totat
Balance {Dispasal)
Building 15,004,006 774,288 {1,855,038} 13,823,256
Leasehold Improvements - - . -
Plant and machinery 71,824,587 2,117,593 {7.647,928) 66,294,252
Furniture and fixtures 70,429 {20,828} 49,601
Motor vehicles 509,453 - {164,120} 345,333
Office equipment 91,319 - (27,211} 64,108
IT equipronent 6,747 - {1,688) 5,059
Laboratory Equipment 82,440 68,872 {30,916} 120,356
Other property, plant and equipment 44,226 325,301 {325,301} 44,226
87,633,207 3,286,054 {10,073,031) 80,846,231

A register containing the information regulred by paragraph 22(3) of Schedule 4 of the Companies Act Is avaitable for
inspection at the registered office of the company. The useful life of the assets has been reworked as per the above and
the depreciatlon for the year reflects the same.

in 2026, the Company expanded its praduction facility at Ladysmith and has estimated the remalning useful life of the
assets at 8 years from April 2015, For each of the next 7 years of useful life of the factory the depreclation expense will
be recognized evenly every year,

4, Loansto {from) shareholders

1. GPT Investments Private Limited (31,170,901} (28,834,298}

Theigan Is unsecured and interest bearing. (nterest on this loan is charged
at the prime lending rate as applicable in South Africa amounting te R1
2,100,959.92 (2016: 81 2,100,959.92}. The lean is repayable once the loan
from Bank of Baroda has been repaid.

2. GPT Infraprojects Limited (7,064,688}

3. P Lingam {500,000}

Mon-current [fabilities {28,753,363) (22,253,363)

Current liabilities - Accrued interest on loan (8,982,225} (6,580,936}
{38,735,588) {28,834,298}

5. Deferred tax

Accelerated capital allowances for tax purposes (12,297,622) (10,4§7,SSB)
Interest capitalised .

Tax losses avallable for set off against future tax income 1,692,130 598,028
Operating lease & other accruals 81,074 25,638
Unrealised foreign exchange differences - 206,181

{10,514,418}  {9,637,811)
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Reglstration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2017 2016

5, Daferred Tax (cantinued)

Reconciliation of deferrad tax asset {[lability}

At beginning of the year {9,637,811) (7,285,024)
Increase (decrease) in tax losses available for set off against future taxable income 1,094,102 558,028
Originating temporary difference on tangible fixed assels {1,829,964) (2,506,138)
Reversing temporary difference on employee advances 65,436 10,381
Originating temporary difference on interest capitalisation . 71,129
Unrealised forelgn exchange differences {206,182} (526,187)

(10,514,418}

(9,637,811}

6. Inventories

Raw material, companents 2,955,836 3,377,346
Finished goods 27,732,569 35,028,200
Direct consumables 666,233 146,650

31,355,658 35,452,205

7. Trade and other receivables

Trade recejvables 25,152,951 10,361,765
Deposits 771,457 743,207
Cost in advance 1,264,466 B10,666

27,188,873 11,915,637

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and ather receivables which are fess than 2 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March

2017 R (606,210} {2016: R 394,352) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of the trade receivablesis as follows:

T T S R T B S RN R R S A SR R e T

25,152,951 10,361,765
Neither past due nor impalred 25,759,161 9,867,413
14-28 days but not Impaired -
28-42 days but not impalred -
42-56 days but not impalred - -
More than 56 days but not impaired (606,210} 394,352

Trage and other receivables impaired:

As of 31 March 2017, na trade and ather receivables were impalred and provided for.
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures In Rand 2017 2016

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 2,037 1,160
Bank balance 2,547,727 45,810
Bank overdraft {21,217,862) (21,030,935)

(18,668,098} (20,983,965}

Current assets 2,549,764 46,970
Current iabllitles (21,217,862} (21,030,935}

(18,668,098) (20,933,965)

The overdraft facility of R21 million and bank limit guarantes of R2 million are secured by:

s Afirst charge on fixed assets (held by Bank of Baroda) which s secured by a Notarial Bond Na. 000001308/2014
dated 29.01.2014

» Corporate guarantee of GPT Infraprajects Limited and personal guarantee of DP Tantia, Atul Tantla, Shree
Gopal Tantia and Vaibhav Tantia

v Cash margin of 20% on bank guarantees issued {100% for amounts in excess of R2 million)

9. Share Capital

Authorised

50,000 Ordinary shares of R1 each 50,000 50,000
Issued

Grdinary 50,000 50,000

1. Other financial llabilities

At amaortised cost

Bank of Baroda - 9,435,758
This loan Is repayable in 35 equal Instalments, with the 36th payment being the

balance, commencing on the 1st of January 2014, interest is charged at the

prime lending rate as applicable in South Africa.

Naon-current liabllities
Bank of Baroda .

Current liabilitles
8ank of Baroda . 5,439,758

. 5,430,758
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{Reglstration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2017 2016
11. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2017
Opening Additions Unutilised Total
balance during the
year
Bonus Provision 72,200 59,425 (72,290} 69,425
Leave Pay Provisicn 36,145 27,838 (36,145} 27,838
108,438 - 97,263 (108,434) 97,263
Reconciliation of provisions - 2016
CGpening Additions Unutilised Total
halance during the
year
Bonus Provision 66,620 72,280 (66,620]) 72,290
Leave Pay Provision 33,310 36,145 {33,310} 36,145
99,930 108,434 {99,930} 108,434
12, Financial Habilitles by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line
items below:
Loan from shareholders 31,170,301 28,834,298
Other financfal llabilitles - 9,439,758
Trade and other payables 53,975,564 41,311,316
Bank overdraft 21,217,862 21,030,935
Provisions _ _ o 97_,263 108,434
106,461,590 100,724,741
13, Trade and other payables
Trade payables £3,139,095 40,345,092
VAT payables 213,878 246,065
Accrued expense 49,818 65,885
Othear payables 572,673 654,263
53,575,564 41,311,316
14. Ravenue
Sale of goads 67,785,259 97,022,377
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Reglstration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures In Rand 2017 2016

15. Cost of sales

Cost of goads sold 34,078,881 52,879,673
Write dewn of inventories ta net realisable value 3,310,076 (5,529,529}
Employee costs 4,012,768 7,454,788
Water & electricity 1,031,662 886,632
Rant 734,200 2,063,002
Repairs and maintenance 746,450 1,355,852
Consumables & sundries 662,179 837,274
Custom duty 2,328 10,913
Motor vehicle fuel & oif - 139,763 350,100
Depreciation 8,627,951 9,854,563
insurance 177,708 168,476
Rental equipment 176,971 178,246

53,700,876 69,514,089

16. Operating profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges

Premises

Contractual amounts 165,657 286,189
Loss an exchange difference {2,246,393) 3,848,044
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8,804,032 10,073,031
Employee cost 3,536,958 2,588,485

17, lhvestment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 45,227 37,490

18. Finance costs

Bank of Baroda 3,035,330 3,634,258

GPT Investments Private Limited 2,336,603 2,100,960

GPT Infraprojects Limited 64,688

Trade and other payables 135,845 .

Finance charges {125,835) 125,835

SARS 11,586 189,692
5,459,227 6,050,745
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{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Flgures in Rand 2017 2016
18, Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences 876,607 2,352,787
Reconclliation of the tax expense
Reconclliation between accounting profit and tax expense,
Accounting profit 3,456,750 5,752,447
Tax on accounting profit at the applicabie tax rate of 28% (2016: 28%3) 967,890 1,610,685
Tax affact of adjustments on taxable incoma
Non-deductible expense 17,222 80,464
Mon-taxable Income -
485,112 1,691,149
20. Auditors’ remuneration
Fees 357,081 291,700
21, Cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation 3,456,750 5,752,447
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amartisation 8,804,032 10,073,031
Interest received {46,227) (37,490}
Finance ¢osts 5,459,227 6,050,745
Movements In provisions (11,172} 8,504
Operating lease (1,071,430) -
Changes in working capital;
inventeries 8,095,547 (9,723,351}
Trade and other receivables (15,273,236} 5,106,564
Trade and other payables 12,664,248 5,324,414
22,678,738 22,554,864

22. Dividends paid

Oividends
Balance at end of the year

(100,000}  {2,394,000)
_ 100,000 100,000

-7 (2,234,000}
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited

(Registration number 2007/031165/07)

Financlal Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fipures in Rand

2017 2016

23. Related partles

Relationships
Holding cornpany
Shareholder with significant influence

Sharehelder

Member of key management

Feflow Associate of holding company

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Qwing (to) by related partles
GPT Investments Private Limited

GPT Infraprojects Limited

GPT Infraprojects Limited

GPT Investments Private Limited
RA Mthethwa

GPT Umnambithi Community Trust
DE Peter

A Tantia

DP Tantia

ATantia

LT Mthethwa

GPT Castings Limited

GET TransNamib Concrete (Pty) Limited

(31,170,903) {28,834,298)

Armounts included In Trade receivables (Trade payable) regarding related parties

RA Mthethwa

GPT investments Private Limited
GPT infraprojects Limited

GPT Castings imited

GPT TransNamlb Concrete Sleepers (Pry) Umited

Related party transactions

fnterest paid to (received from) refated parties

GPT Investments Private Limited
GPT Infraprojects Limited

Cansulting fees pald to related parties
GPT lnvestments Private Lkmited

Salaries paid to related partles
RA WMthethwa
[T Mthethwa

(7,064,688)
(13,063,872} (8,284,726)
{764,612} (452,456)
{1,084,080} (588,376)

2,500,000 (404,523)

2,336,603 2,100,960

64,688
7,265,160 7,538,286
1,560,000 1,617,000
325,000 289,600

Al the above transactions are at arms length and comparable market rates,




GPT Concrete Products Souin Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statemeant for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Flgures in Rand 2017 2016

24. Directors' emoluments

Non-Executive
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2017 Emoluments
LT Mthethwa 325,000
2016 Emocluments
LT Mthethwa 289,600

Preseribed Officers

2017 Emoluments
RA Mthethwa 1,560,060
2016 Emoluments
RA Mthethwa 1,617,000

25. Risk management
The company's activities expose It to a variety of financal risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest rate sisk - The company's Interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings. Borrowing issued at variable rates
expose the company to cash flow Interest rate risk, During 2017 and 2016 the company’s borrowings at varlable rates
were denominated In the Rand. The company analyses its interest rate exposure on 3 dynamic basls. The company
calculates the [mpact on profit and loss of a defined interast rate shift,

At 31 March 2017, if interest rates on Rand-denominated barrowings had been 1% higher with all other variables held
constant, past tax profit for the year would have been lower, malnly as a result of a higher interest expense on fioating
rate horrowings.

Credit risk - Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only deposits
cash with major banks with high quality credit standings and Hmits exposure 1o any one counter-party,

Foreign exchange risk - The company does not hedge forelgn exchange fluctuations.

Exchange rates used for converting of foreign ltems were USD 1:R13.41 (2016; R14.91}. The source of these rates is the
Interbank rate of Nedbank Limited.

Foreign currency expasure at the end of the reporting period.

Liabllities

GPT Infraprojects Limited 2017; $57,007 {2016 $30,345) 764,612 452,456
GPT Castings Limited 2017: $80,825 (2016: 546,168 } 1,084,080 688,376
GPT Investments (Pvt} Limited 2017: 5974,000 {2016: 5551,000} 13,063,872 8,215,410
Amjaneya Trading [Pte} Limited 2017; $424,282 (2016: $724,282) 5,690,727 10,799,045

20,603,251 20,155,287
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GPT Concrete Products Scuth Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the yvear ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2017 2016

Liquidity risk - The company's risk to lguldity {s a result of the funds avaifable to cover future commitments. The
company manages llquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

At 31 March 2017 lessthan 1 Between 1 Quer 5 years
year and 2 years
Borrowings 30,200,088 29,753,363
Trade and other payables 53,875,564 -
84,175,652 29,753,363 -
At 31 March 2016 tess than 1 Between 1 Over 5 years
year and 2 years
Borrowings 37,051,628 22,253,363
Trade and other payables 41,311,316 -
78,362,944 22,253,363 -

26. Contingencies

The following guarantees have heen Issued:

Scaw South Africa {Pty} Limited against a fixed depasit of R100,600 held at Bank of Baroda 500,000 500,000
pandrol South Africa [Pty) Limlted against a fixed depasit of R100,000 heid at Bank of 500,000 500,000
Baroda

Transnet Limited against a fixed deposit of R376,610 held at Bank of Baroda 1,680,000 1,174,979

2,680,000 2,174,978
2,680,000 2,174,972
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GPT Concrete Preducts South Africa Proprietary Limited
{Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statemenit for the year ended March 31, 2017

Detailed Income Statement

Figures In Rand Notels) 2017 2015
Revanue
Sales of goods 14 67,785,259 97,022,377
Cost of sales
Opening stock {36,074,859) {25,345,825)
Purchases (46,024,919)  (80,243,119)
Closing Stock 28,398,802 36,074,859
15 (s3,700,876)  (69,514,089]
Gross profit 14,084,283 27,508,288
Other incoma
Discount received 3,522,609 2,236,560
Miscellaneous Income 2,026 -
tnterest received 17 46,227 37,480
Government grants - -
3,570,862 2,274,050
Expenses {Refer to page 28) {8,739,189) {17,979,146)
Operating profit 8,815,976 11,803,182
Finance costs 18 (5,458,227} (6,050,745}
Profit before taxation 3,456,750 5,752,447
Taxation 19 £76,607 2,352,787
Profit for the year 2,580,143 3,399,660

The supplernentary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
(Registration number 2007/031165/07)
Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

Detailed Income Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s} 2017 2016
Operating expenses
Accounting fees 67,154 27,150
Advertising 19,308 7,080
Auditors’ remuneration 20 357,081 201,700
Bank charges 57,331 115,416
Cleaning 265,346 204,364
Computer expenses 16,480 13,081
Consulting fees 4,515,171 7,580,688
Depreciation, amortisation end impairments 176,081 218,458
Donations 38,500 16,200
Entertalnment 36,851 62,205
Ermployee Costs 2,784,730 2,588,495
Business pramotions 190,094 877
General expense 85,857 51,377
Fines and penalties 2,860 2,405
Insurance 112,173 159,079
Lease rentals on operating lease 165,656 286,190
Legal expenses 59,900 10,870
Loss on exchange differences {2,246,393) 3,948,044
Motor vehicle expenses 152,258 199,264
Postage 5,512 8,581
Printing and statlonery 21,198 23,900
Repairs and maintenance 34,635 29,830
Secretarial fees 28,935 30,536
Staff welfare 303,773 331,645
Security 608,054 767,061
Subscriptions 2,975 2,841
Telephone and fax 134,999 108,955
Travelling 609,295 331,711
Transpart znd fraight 118,330 808,567
Utilities 32,024 32,186
8,739,168 17,579,145

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financlal statements and is unaudited
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